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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Strategic report

The directors present their strategic report for Brake Bros Lxrmted ("Brakes") for the financial year ended 31 December 2015. This report anatyses the performance and explains
other aspects of the Group's results and op 3 g gy and nsk

Review of the business

The principal activity of the Group is the specialist supply of frozen, chilled and ambient foods as well as ing supplies and equip to the catering industry. The principal
trading companies in the Group are Brake Bros Limited, Brake Bros Foodservice Limited, M&J Seafood Limited, Wild Harvest Limited, Brakes Foodservice NI Limited, Freshfayre
Limited, Brake Bros Foodservice Ireland Limited, Pauleys Produce Limited, Fresh Direct (UK) Limited, Brake France Service SAS, Davigel SAS and Menigo Foodservice AB.

Brakes Group is a leading European foodservice provider, operating in the UK, France, Sweden and reland. With over 15,000 colleagues working for th’e Group the business
has now successfully delivered the third year of its five year plan and is on track to build on this momentum.

2015 Key successes

1. Leveraging scale to drive operating efficiencies: Dunng 2015 the UK i P its iti lo the new mulu-(emperalure network at
Bodelwyddan, Hemsworth, Newhouse and Warrington. 23,500 customer units in the UK are now ivi It i that app one third of
UK deliveries are now multi The third and largest Regional Distribution Centre was opened |n Harlow dunng the year and Harlow's transition to multi-temperature is

expected to finish by the end of Marl:h 2016. We've begun the preparations for transitioning our Logistics business onto our core SAP IT systems. This work will continue next
year as we strive for increasingly efficient, reliable operations right across the business.

During 2015 we successfully carried out the migration of our IT pi i to the Cap i Data Centre. This is a major milestone in our IS transformation programme
and means we are now provided with a firm foundation on wnlch to build and continue to improve our service stability and perfformance.  *

During 2015, Brakes has continued to step-change its purchasing scale, expertise and insight with buyers working together across six different European markets through. This
has been done through new buying partnerships as part of our new procurement alliance called C: i The aim of C ion is to create value for Brakes and the other
partners by cost saving as well as increasing sales from activity such as improving our product range.

2. Driving organlc growth through lnduslry leading customer experience: Brakes has continued to provide a high standard of businéss partnering to its customers in
2015, ag g and appreciation of the realities of running a business with foodservice requirements, whether it be pubs, restaurants, hotels,
hospitals, schools, care homes or leisure lamlmes

- \
As a company setting foodservice trends, 2015 saw Brakes working with suppliers and s to innovate with new p and menu pts to meet * needs.
Brakes has quickly turned ideas into reality, focusing on the right choice and quality of products at the best value, with something in its range for ali of its customers. (n 2015,
Brakes introduced over 350 new products to the range and re-developed a further 180 products.

Brakes new e-Commerce platform in the UK is now tive and the P base is pting this new online platform. Sales through our ontine ordering platform were
up year on year and by the end of Q1, nearly 80 percent of customers buying on-line said Brakes’ e-C offering was ing their requil and that it was quick and
easy and that they would recommend it. ‘ :

Brakes people have also from a i il in a wide range of bespoke training programmes being rolled out across the Group's workforce.

3. Expanding through acquisition: Brakes Group has completed two acquisitions in 2015; .

a. Acquisition of Fresh Direct — unlocking future growth in fresh food: Following on from the made in N ber 2014 the Group, on 23 February 2015,
completed the deal with Fresh Direct, to create a new fresh food company, known as “Fresh Direct’. M&J Seafood, Pauleys and Wild Harvest were contributed by the Group and
become part of this new Fresh Direct company within the Group. .

Almaost one third of Brakes’ sales currently come from fresh and chilled food. This acquisition has created an even broader fresh food offer with capability to deliver fresh
products six or seven days per week, from dedicated locat fresh depots. This new company has the capability to give Brake's customers the additional choice of a daily fresh
delivery service from a network of regional specialist depots that meet their specific needs.

Since its acquisition Fresh Direct has perf d positively, in line with exp i ici p ing sy ies are on track. A new London depot, in Dagenham, has
opened and will provide capacity and iency ities in London and the South East.

b. Acquisition of Davigel - strengthening our position in France: On 2 November 2015 the Group completed the acquisition of Davigel from Nestié. Davige! is a major supplier
of chilled and frozen food for the European foodservice market. We have a very strong heritage in France via Brake France, which has operated in the region for the last 23
years and the addition of Davigel further slrengtnens our position as a major player in France as well as opening up new markets in Selgium, Luxembourg and Spain. Davigel
brings to Brakes Group & strong g i It will i to operate as standalune business, with the new Brakes Continental Europe Division (BCED) created to
oversee the development and strategy of these il The two ies' current isation, in terms of sales; product offering and distribution, will stay in place to
ensure a seamless service for our customers.

4. Deli d strong cash g and flity: The position of the Group is strong, with 2015 closing cash balance of £149.7m (2014: £117.7m), committed
facilities in place with an average tenure over 3 years healthy headroom in banking covenants and £230.0m of new Senior bank debt raised during 2015 replacing existing
shorter dated bank debt. .

Summary of resuits
The results for the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 6.

Brakes Group delivered a strong performance in 2015, growing its sales by 6.5 percent and its EBITDA by 13.9%.

The results for the Group show a pre-tax profit of £74.2m (2014: £75.4m) for the year and revenue of £3,295.0m (2014: £3,094.2m). The resulls for the year are aﬂer charging
exceptional items of £48.6m (2014: £38.3m) referred to in note 2 of these financial statements.

Operational summary and outlook
Having successfully delivered the fourth year of its five year plan, Bmkes is on track to be a world class foodservice company that is Ieadmg the industry’s development, Brakes'

passion for its customers and focus on meeting its customers’ needs |s { by its i of i in its people, infrastructure and distribution
networks, which will both simplify the i and the xperi it offers. Brakes |s further strengthening its foundations to build on its market leadership
position. |
On 22 February 2016 the Bain Capital d that it had d a definiti '] for the sale of the Group to North America's leading foodservice distributor Sysco
It is exp that ion will plete by July 2016. ’
Page 1



Brake Bros Limited
Annual raport and financial statements
Far the ysar ended 31 Dacember 2018

Strategic report (continued)

ipal risks and derveal and p
The directors of tha largest UK parent Cucina Lux Umited, s Group's riaks and performanos through its tmmedists subsidiary company Cucing
Investments (UK} 3 Umited. Fwtrhmndhanmdm&mtm together with an enalysis using key performance indicators has not besn indluded by the
Campary's directors.
The fsks and and posiion, end an analysls using key parformance indicstors of ths Cusina Lux investments

mewm&mwmwmmm In the strategic repast of Cuaina tux Investments Limhied's annust report, which doss not form
pertof thia report. Details of how 10 citsin thess financial statemants can ba found In note 27 to the finandlal statemants. .

Approved by the Board of Directors and aigned on its behaif by:

mwg MM 2 [oon,

Director
28 Apr 2010
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Brake Bros Limited ) .
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Directors’ report

The directors submit their annual repu'n and the audited i and parent ial for the year ended 31 December 2015.

General information .
Brake Bros Limited is a limited P i porated in Eng and Wales and domiciled and operating in the United Kingdom.

The immediate parent undertaking and controlling party is Brake Bros Acquisition Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales.

The ultimate parent undertaking is Cucina (BC) Luxco $.3 r.l. ("Cucina®), a private limited pany regi: inL g. The ultimate controlling parties of the Company are
Bain Capital Fund IX E LP and Bain Capital Fund VIIl E LP, both are limited p i gi in the Cayman Islands, which are indirectly controlled by Bain
Capital Investors LLC, a Delaware limited fiability company. .

Future outlook and going concern

The Company and certain idiary ings are obligors of the wider group's financing arrangemenls which extend to senior debt held by an intermediate parent company,
Cucina Acqulsmon (UK) Limited, as such, the going of the Company and its i is upon the overall going concern of the wider Cucina Group. In
assessing whether the financial statements for the Group and Company should be prepared on the going concem basis, the directors have considered the future outlook of the
Company and of the Group on a combined basis. A fuller analysis of this oulook and the basis for this assessment is set out in the financial statements of the largest UK parent
company, Cucina Lux Investments Limited. Having considered the future operaung profits, cash ﬂows and facilities available to the wider Cucina Group, the directors are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient funds to repay its liabilities as they fall due. C , the i of the Group and the Company are prepared on
the going concem basis. Details of how to obtain these financial statements can be found in note 27 to |he financial statements.

Post balance sheet event

On 22 February 2016 Bain Capital that it had a definitive ag for the sale of the Company's parent ing Cucina Lux Limited to
North America's leading foodservice distri Sysco C i Itis that ion will P by July 2016. :
Dividends

No interim dividends have been paid {2014: £nil) and the directors do not recommend a final dividend (2014: £nil).

Directors

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements, unless otherwise stated, are given befow:
| R Goldsmith

A J Whitehead (resigned 31 March 2015)
S P Smith

D C Lennard (resigned 31 March 2015)
P Wieland (resigned 4 April 2016)

P Mclintyre

K McMeikan

S Whibley (appointed 1 April 2015)

M Ball (appointed 4 April 2016)

Directors’ third party indemnlty provisions

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined in Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 is in force for the benem of each of the directors in respect of Ilahllmes incurred
as a result of their office, to the extent permitted by law. In respect of those liabilities for which directors may‘not by the Company a " and
officers’ liabitity i policy the ial year and to the date of app of these

9

Employment report

The Group aims to keep aware of all ial factors ing them as employ and the per of the Group and |hexr pecti i . It en
good communication through regutar i and staff, ing senior to consult and ployees’ views on all appropriate matters.
This is supplemented by regular briefings, intranet and e-mail ins and divisi S. P are ged to partici in the p of the Group by

way of bonus schemes.

The Group employs over 15,000 people. We provide extensive training and career development programmes. - It is our policy to achieve and maintain a high standard of health
and safety at work and to ensure everyone, regardless of race, religion or.sex, and including disabled people where reasonable and practicable, is treated in the same way as
regards applications for employment, training, career development and promotion. Every effort is made to help with the rehabilitation of anyone injured during their employment,
and to provide support we have an Employee Care Programme. .

Health and safety -

As a business the Group is strongly 1 to providing a safe and responsible place to work. Concem for the wellbeing .of our staff is a key element in our drive to be “a
great place to work™ and we this i through ing training and ion of all our employees; working closely with our insurance providers and
equipment suppliers to ensure sharing of best practice and Ieading edge health and safety solutions.

Financial risk management
The Group has operations in the UK, the Republic of irefand and Continentaf Europe and has debt financing which expases it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects
of in foreign y exch rates, interest rates, credit risks, commodity price risks and liquidity risk.

The Group’s Treasury Ci i [ I the overall applicalion of the risk management policies in relation to treasury, with the board of directors having overall
responsibility for setting the risk management policies dpplied by the Group. The Treasury Committee and the central group treasury department receive regular reports from the
operating companies to enable prompt identification of financial risks so that the appropriate actions may be taken, and policies mplememed The Group has a policy and
procedures manual that sets out specific guidelines to foreign ge risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and s, and
investment of excess liquidity. Further information on these is also given in note 16 of these financiat statements. :

(a) Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group has operations in the UK, the Repubhc of Ireland, France and Swedén. The Group is to foreign risks primarily with respect to the Euro and the
Swedish Krona. The Group Treasury department manages this risk mainly through the use of foreign currency borrowings in the wider Cucina Group to hedge the foreign
cumrency investment.

(b) interest rate risk

The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabililies. The Group's interest rate risk primarily arises from floating interest rate long term borrowings. Interest
rate risk is not considered material for the Group.

(c) Credit nisk

The Group has ng significant concentrations of credit risk. Thé Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales
commence.

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group aclively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term facitifies, including amounts funded from parent ings that are igned to ensure the Group has
sufficient available funds for operahons and planned expansions.

(e} Commodity price risk

The Group is exp to ity price risk pri y with respect to diesel purchases. The Group has in ptace a risk management programme that seeks to Ilmn the adverse

effects on the financial performance of the Group by usmg diesel fuel commodity swaps to hedge against future price changes

independent auditor
Deloitte LLP shall remain in office until the Company or Deloitte LLP determine otherwise.

Di of to
Each of the persons who are a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that: A
+ so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit i ion of which the Company’s auditor is . and

+ the director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit mforma!lon and to establish that the
Company’s auditor is aware of that information. .

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006.
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Brake Bros Limited
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For the year ended 31 Dscember 2018

mwmmw
The are for the snnual report and the o n with sppiicabls taw and reguiations.
tow requires the o prepars for eath yesr. mmmmmmmmmwmww
with FRinancial 8tar (IFRS3) es adopted by the Eurcpean Union. Under company taw the the

in
Mmmmmmum-mn-mmmmammamdhmmmmw«mmumummmm
poricd.

In hess fi ] tha diry are required to

- make end that are ond prug

« gtate whether applicabio IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpesn Union have been subjoct to ary material dep and expts Inthe

and

* prapars the group firancial statemeants on the going concam dasls uniesa it is Inappropriate to prasums that e company and the group will continue in business,
The are responsibie for kesping g records that are sufficiant to show and expiain the s and disclose with

nmmhwmwmmmmmwmmummm&mmmmmmmmm They are aiso
rasponsible for safequarding tha assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking rezsonsble steps for tha prevention and datecfion ¢f fraud and other iregulerities.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed an fta behaif by;

)(emw& MM el —

Director
29 April 2018 TNGS 4A0
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Brake Bros Limited

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements of Brake Bros Limited for the year ended 31 December 2015 which comprise the consolidated income

the and pany of p ive income, the and of | position, the consolidated and company
statements of changes in equity, the and Yy of cash fiows, and the related nates 1 to 28. The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation is app law and Financia) Reporti (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial
statements, as applied in with the p of the Compani Act 20086.
This report is made solely to the Company's as a body, in with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
taw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s bers as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions

we have formed.

iy ilitles of and auditor
As explalned more fully in the " resp ilities the are rasponsible for the preparation of the and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the in with i law and on

Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Audiling Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financlal statements

An audit i ini i about the and inthe sufficient to give that the are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by 'raua or eror. This Includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are tothe C S Ci

and have been y applied and adeq the of made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the
financial statements. In addltlon we read all lhe ial-and non: in the annual mpon to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any ion that is based on, or with, the ] q by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become awars of any app. ori we the ions for our report,

Opinlon on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group and parent company’s affalrs as at 31 December 2015 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

« the group have been properly prep in d: with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prep: in with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companles Act 2006; and

«the have been prep. in with the req of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation.

Opinion on other matter p by the C: Act 2008

In our opinion the given in the Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the fi i are prepared is i with the

financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

«the are not in ag with the ing records and retums; or
« certain of specmad by law are not made; or
+we have not ived all the i ion and lons we require for our audit.

Emma Cox BA ACA (Senlor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Ch and Yy Auditor
London, United Kingdom

29 Aprit 2016
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Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Note £m £m

Continuing operations .
Revenue 2 3,295.0 . 3,094.2
Operating costs {3,233.1) (3,029.1)
EBITDA’ : 171.4 150.1
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of intangible assets (60.6) (46.7)
Exceptional items 3 (48.6) (38.3)
Operating profit 2 61.9 65.1
Finance costs 3 (13.3) (10.4)
Finance income 3 25.6 20.7
Finance income - net 123 10.3
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 74.2 75.4
Income tax charge 4 (22.6) (11.9)
Profit for the year after taxation 51.6 63.5
Profit attributable to of the p
Owners of the parent company 21 46.7 61.6
Non-controlling interest 4.9 1.9

61.6 . 63.5

"EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation, impairment of intangible assets and exceptional items)

The notes on pages 14 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the parent company income statement. The profit for the parent company for

the year was £51.2m (2014: £35.1m).

' Page 6




Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated and company statements of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Note £m . £m £m £m
Profit for the year 51.6 63.5 51.2 35.1
Other comprehensive income / {expense):
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit pension pension schem: 17 714 (14.0) 5.5 (12.0)
Taxation on items taken directly to other comprehensive income 4 {1.7) 27 {1.2) 2.3
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 54 (11.3) 4.3 (9.7)
items that may be reclassified to profit or Ibss .
Cash flow hedges - losses arising in th period 21 - {2.4) - (2.4)
Taxation on cash flow hedges 21 - 0.5 - 0.5
.Currency translation differences 21 {5.7) {4.7) - -
Total items that may be reclassified to profit or loss {8.7) (6.6) - (1.9)
Other comprehensive {expense) / income for the xéar, net of tax {0.3) (17.9) 43 (11.6)
Total comprehensive income for the year 51.3 45.6 55.5 23.5
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the parent company 51.5 447 55.5 235
Total comprehensive (expense) / income for the year attributable to non-controlling interests {0.2) 0.9 - -
51.3 45.6 55.5 23.5

The notes on pages 14 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial atatements
For the year endod 31 December 2015 -

Consolidated statement of financial position

At 31 December 2018
2018 2014
Noto £m &m £m &m
Assets
Goodwill [:) 1854 1614
intangible sasets 7 874 421
Property, and equipment 8(a) 346 208.9
tax aszets 18 17.8 328
.9 434.9
Current assets
tnvantartos 10 1788 124.1
Trade end other receivattas 11 1,000.3 8278
Cazh and cash 12 1487 nrr
Assata classified as hetd for sate 8(b) 72 -
1,337.0 10694
Uabiittes
Current liabllities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 (147.2) 1.1)
Financial lisbilities - derivative finandisl instruments 18(c) 3.0) 2.4)
Trede and other payeblos 13 (783.8) (674.4)
Current incoms teoe flabilltiss 14 (3.6) .1)
18 38 (42
_@ng) {560.2)
Nat current asssts 4283 470.2
Non-current febEitiss
Financial llabifities - botrowings 15 {Ba1) (160.2)
Rstirement benefit obligations 17 02.9) (61.4)
Provisions 18 {24.2) {21.1)
(328.5) £250.7)
Nat assats 728.2 854.4
Share capital 20 54 84
Share premium 308 308
Other reserves 21 %4 (7.8)
Retained eamings 21 6823 630.4
Tatal equity sttrfbutable to owners of the parent company 7282 668.8
. Non-oontroliing interasts - (4.4)
ot squiy 1283 ssa.4

The notes on pages 14 to 41 form an ntegeal part of thess financial ststements.
The financia! statemants on pages 8 to 41 were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2018 and were signed on its behif by:

me@ MM a'/(on‘

Director
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and flnanclal statements
For the year ended 31 Decomber 2015

Company statement of financlal position

At 31 Decomber 2018
018 2014
Note &m £m 2m om
Asxsets
Non-current ssssts
Goodwll ] 282
{ntangiblo assots 7 308 318
Property, plant and equipment 8(a) 1834 1415
Defarred tux asseta 19 208 285
Investments In subsidiaries 9 2282 1881
Trade and other recsivables . 11 cas -
53087 418.1
Current asssts
tnventoriea 10 714 127
Trade and othar raceivables 1 7304 650.5
Cash end cash equivalents 12 1.8 876
Asssts cassitied an held for sala am) 7.2 -
878.8 7808
Ushilities
Current Rabiilties
Flnencial llsbilittes - b dngs 16 (14.0) (162)
Financial iabllities - financial instruments 16(c) 24) 24)
Trade and other payables 13 { {572.2)
Pravisions 18 (:9) (1.2)
{8338 (6910
Net curent asssty 228.0 1998
Non-cument Bsbillties
Financial liabifties - borrowings 15 (109:8) (14.1)
Retirement benefit obiigations 17 (28.1) (35.0)
Provisions 18 1179) {18.1)
{16a8) ©7.2)
Neat assets 606.2 5§50.7
Equity
Shars capital 2 84 8.4
Share premium 3308 30.8
Other resarves 21 a8 a8
Retuined emnings 21 581.2 806.7
Total equity 606.2 550.7
The notes cn pages 14 to 41 form an integral part of thass financis! statements.
The financial stetemants on pages € to 41 were approved by the Bosdd of Directors on 28 April 2016 and wers signed on its behalf by:
Vopuro (é, ot L an
K MoMstian . C ber. 02035315
Director

e



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributable to owners of the parent company

Share premium Retained Non-controliing _ Total
Share capital account Other reserves eamings Total interests equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2014 54 30.8 (1.2) 579.1 614.1 (5.3) 608.8
Comprehensive income )
Profit for the year . - - - 61.6 616 1.9 63.5
Other compr ive (exp M i
Currency translation differences 21 - - (4.7) - {4.7) - (4.7) *
Cash flow hedges . - - (2.4) - (2.4) - (2.4)
Taxation on cash flow hedges B - - 0.5 - 0.5 - 05
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension scheme 17 - - - (13.0) (13.0) (1.0) (14.0)
Taxation on items taken directly to other comprehensive .
income . 19 S - - - 27 27 - 27
Total other comprehensive expense - - {6.6) {10.3) {16.9) {1.0) (17.9)
Total comprehensive {exp e} ! income - - {6.6) 51.3 44.7 09 456
Balance at 1 January 2015 5.4 30.8 {7.8) 630.4 658.8 (4.4) 654.4
Comprehensive income ‘
Profit for the year X - - - 46.7 46.7 4.9 516
Other comprehensive (exp ) 1
Currency translation differences 21 - - 5.7) - (5.7) - (5.7)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension scheme T 17 - - - 6.9 .89 0.2 71
Taxation on items taken directly to other comprehensive
income 19 . B - (1.7) (1.7) . (1.7)
Total other comprehensive (expense) / income - - (5.7) 5.2 (0.5) 0.2 (0.3)
-Total comprehensive {expense) / income - - (5.7) 519 46.2 5.1 51.3
Adjustments arising from change in non-controlling interest - - 20.2 -- 20.2 (0.7) 19.5
Balance at 31 December 2015 5.4 30.8 6.7 682.3 725.2 - 725.2

The notes on pages 14 to 41 form an integrat part of these financial statements.
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Company statement of changes in equity

Attributable to owners of the parent company

Page 11

Share premium Retained Total
Share capital account Other reserves eamings equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m.
Balance at 1 January 2014 5.4 30.8 10.7 480.3 527.2
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 351 . 35.1
Other comprehensive (expense) / income .
Cash flow hedges . . (2.4) = (2.4)
. Taxation on cash flow hedges - - 05 - 05
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension scheme 17 - - - (12.0) (12.0)
Taxation on items taken directly to other comprehensive
income . ) 19 - - - 2.3 2.3
Total other comprehensive expense - - (1.9) (9.7) {11.6)
Total comprehensive (expense) / income - - 1.9) 25.4 23.5
Balance at 1 January 2015 5.4 30.8 8.8 - 505.7 550.7
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 51.2 51.2
Other compr ive i I (exp )
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension scheme . 17 - - - 55 5.5
Taxation on items taken directly to other comprehensive . .
income 19 - - - (1.2) (1.2)
Total other comprehensive income - - - 4.3 4.3
Total comprehensive income - - - 55.5 55.5
Balance at 31 December 2015 5.4 30.8 8.8 561.2 606.2
The notes on pages 14 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
N



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated statement of cash flows .

For the year ended 31 December 2015 '

Note

2015
£m

£m

. 2014
£m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations : 22

.145.5

1239

Analysed as:
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items

1923

{46.8)

153.2
(29.3)

Exceptional items

Interest paid

Income tax paid

(8.2)
(4.0)

7.0)
(4.5)

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Sale of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale and leaseback of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired :

(50.8)

(12.3)
45
3.0

(26.9)

1333

(43.0)
{16.7)
4.5

1124

Net cash used in investing activities
{

Cash flows used in financing activities
- Proceeds on issue of shares in subsidiary undertaking
“Transaction costs arising on obtaining debt finance
Payments to parent undertakings
Loan from parent undertaking -
Loans to parent undertakings
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of external borrowings

Finance lease capital repayments

04
(an
(54.5)
88.2
(0.3)
20.0
(55.2)
(14.7)

(82.5)

(52.5)

(0.4)
226
(26.4) °
(13.3)

(54.2)

(17.8)

(70.0)

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 12

33.0

177
(1.0)

(11.8)

134.0°
(4.5)

Effects of exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 D b 12

149.7

177

The notes on pages 14 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Company statement of cash flows"

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Note -_£m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations - 22 60.? 65.0
Analysed as:
Cash generated from operations before exceptiona!l items 101.2 94.0
Exceptional items {40.3) (29.0)
Interest paid {2.2) (1.8)
Net cash generated from operating activities 58.7 63.2
Cash flows from investing activities .
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - N {36.9) (32.7)
Purchase of intangible assets (9.4) (12.7)

. Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets i 4.0 34
Proceeds from sale and leaseback of property, plant and equipment 3.0 -
. Acquisition of subsidiaries (8.4)

Net cash used in lnvestinglgctlvlﬂes {41.7) (42.0) .
Cash flows from financing activities .
Payments to parent undertakings {64.4) (52.6)
Loan from parent undertaking 88.2 -
Loans to parent undertakings {0.3) (0.3)
Loans to group undertakings {64.5) -
Payments from group undertaking 226 4 15.7
Finance lease capital repayments {8.4) (7.3)

. Net cash used in financing activities {16.8) . (44.5)
Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents - 12 {5.8) (23.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January ) 67.6 90.9
Cash and cash '., ivalents at 31 Decemb ) 12 61.8 67.6

The notes on pages 14 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited - : .
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policies
Significant accounting policies

The Group's principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these cor d financial \1s are set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. .

Basis of preparation .
These financial statements are the consolidated financial its of Brake Bros Limited ("the Group") and the parent company financial statements of Brake Bros Limited (“the
Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2015. These group consolidated and company financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2016.

These consoli d financial its have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Sta as pted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by
the EV), IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The consolidated financial have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consoli d financial its in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consclidaled financial statements are disclosed below within critical accounting estimates and assumptions.

The Company and certain subsidiary undertakings are obligors of the wider group’s financing arrangements, which extend to debt held by an intermediate parent pany, Cucina
Acquisition (UK) Limited, as such, the going concem of the Company and its subsidiaries is dependent upon the overall going concem of the wider Cucina Group. In assessing whether
the financial statements for the Company should be prepared on the going concem basis, the directors have therefore considered the future outiook of the Company and of the Group
on a combined basis and have sought assurances from the largest UK parent cémpany, Cucina Lux Investments Limited. A fuller analysis of this outiook and the basis for this
assessment is set out in the financial statements of the largest UK parent company, Cucina Lux investments Limited. Having considered the future operating profits, cash flows and
facilities available to the wider Cucina Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient funds to repay its liabilities as they fall due. On this basis the Directors consider
it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis.

Adoption of new and revised Standards

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following S ‘and Ir P ions which have not been applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet -
effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU): . B

-IFRS 9 Financial Instruments .

-IFRS 15 Revenue

- IFRS 18 ) ’ Leases

- IAS 1 (amendments) Disclosure Initiative . . : .
- 1AS 16 (amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment )

- IAS 27 (amendments) Investment Entities

- IAS 38 (amendments) Intangible Assets

- IAS 39 (amendments) Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

- IFRIC Interpretation 21° Levies

- Various amendments resulting from Annual tmprovements 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle
- Various amendments resulting from 2014 Annual Improvements to IFRSs

Except as follows, the directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards and Interpretations listed above will have a material impact on the financial stalements of the Group in
future periods:

- IFRS 9, which will impact both the measurement and disclosures of Financial Instruments;
- IFRS 15, in respect of which it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of this standard until a detailed review has been completed.
- IFRS 18, in respect of which it is not practicabte to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of this standard until a detailed review has been completed.

Basis of consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries N

These consoli “financial ts consolidate the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiary undertakings. Subsidiaries include structured entities where the
substance of the relationship between the Group and the structured entity indicates that it is controlled by the Group. Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group has power over the investee; is exposed, or has rights, to variable retum from its ir 1t with the i ; and has the
ability to use its power to affects its retumns. Subsndlanes are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to lhe Group. They are deconsclidated from lne date that
control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the
assets transferved, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any assets or liability arising from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent fiabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controliing interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree's net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase (he dnfference is recognised dn'ectly in the consoli d it of prehensive income.

For transactions with enuues under common control the available exemptlon from IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' is taken and the predecessor method of accounting is used. The
identifiable assets and liabilities are measured at their pre-combination carrying value including any previously consolidated goodwill, any differences on consolidation (ie. between the
cost of investment and the carrying value of the net assets) are recogmsed in equity in retained eamings. The Group recognises the results of the acquired entity from the dale on which
the business combination between entities under common control occurred.

Uniform accounting policies are adopted across the Group. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Urirealised losses are also eliminated uniess the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policies {continued)

Basis of consolldahon (contunued)

(b) A g for b

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any assets or fiability arising from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisiti tated costs are exp d as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly’in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For transactions with entities under common contro! the available exemption from IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' is taken and the predecessar method of accounting is used. The
identifiable assets and liabilities are measured at their pre-combination carrying value including any previously consolidated goodwill, any differences on consolidation (ie. between the
cost of investment and the carrying value of the net assets) are recognised in equity in retained eamings. The Group recognises the results of the acquired entity from the date on which
the business combination between entities under common control occurred.

Non-cémrolling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Those interests of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other non-controlling interests are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent to acquisition, the camying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this resuits in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(c) Ti f with non.

The Group treats transactions wrth non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purch: from lling i . the drffelence between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded |n equity. Gains or losses on dtsposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in camrying amount recognised in the
consoli d income The fair value is the initial camying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest in the associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comp: 1sive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
refated assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previcusly recognised in other comprehensive income are r ified to the consoli income it

if the ownershlp in an assocnate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
r to the cor income t where appropriate.

Revenue ' )
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of products and services, including ancillary revenues, net of value added lax rebates and
discounts and after ehrmnaung sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised when the Group has delivered the products or service, has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership and when it is considered
probable that the related receivable is collectable. Rebates and discounts are recognised when the Group has delivered the products and services and when it is considered probable
that the obligation is receivable or payable, respectively.

Buying income

Buying income is received from suppliers as a discount against the cost of products and services purchased. Discounts can take the form of banded overriders earned on purchase
levels, marketing income, or product specific rebates. The credit is recognised in the income statement either against direct puchase cost or other costs and inventory is revalued to
reflect the lower value after discount. Buying income is invoiced to or credited from suppliers throughout the year, and at the year end any remaining receivable is recorded in fine with
supplier arrangement terms and management estimates based on confirmations from suppliers and contracts.

Exceptional items .

Where items of income and expense included in the consoli d income it, including losses in respect of businesses exited or being exited are considered to be material and
outside the normal course of business, separate disclosure of their nature and amount is provided in the consolidated financial These items are classified as exceptional
items. The Group considers the size and nature of an item both individually and when aggregated with similar items, whgn considering whether it is material.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is shown at hlstoncal cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment.

Cost represents invoiced cost plus any other costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. The Group capitalises borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The Group charges borrowing costs to the consolidated income statement for non-quaiifying assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be reliably measured All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income 1t during the
financial period in which they are incurred. :

No depreciation is provided on freehold tand.

Depreciation is provided on all other property, plant and equipment to write down their cost or, where their useful economic lives have been revised, their carrying amount at the date of
revision to their estimated residual values on a straight line basis over the periods of their estimated, or revised, remaining useful economic lives respectively. These lives are
considered to be:

Freehold buildings - between 17 and 40 years

Leasehold buildings - the period of the lease or 40 years whichever is the shorter
Motor vehicles - between 5 and 10 years

Plant and equipment - between 3 and 40 years

Information technology hardware - between 3and 5 years

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed each financial year.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Profits and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.A ing policies (cor ._ d) ’ '

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less oos!s to sell. Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Mar 1t must be itted to the sale which should be expected to take place within one year from the date of reclassification.

Investments in subsidiaries”
Investments in subsidiaries held as non-current assets are accounted for at cost less any provision for impairment in value. [f the directors consider that the fair value of investments in
subsidiaries are below their carrying value then a provision for impairment would be made.

Intangible assets . . . .

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on aoqulsmons of subsnd»anes is included in ‘intangible assets’. Goodwill is not subject to annual amortisation but is instead tested annually for impairment and canried at cost

less accl pail it losses. impai it losses on dwill are not reversed.

Goodwill is all d to cash g ing units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

(b) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capltahsed as an lnlanglble asset on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the specific software. Directly attributable
costs i with the devel of that are d to generate future economic benefits are capitalised as part of computer software.

Where software costs are italised they are ised using the straight-line basis to write them down to their estimated realisable value over their estimated useful economic lives,
which are considered to be between three and five years.

The residual value and useful economic life are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate at each 1t of financial position date.

(c) Ci and
Customer lists and customer contracts and relationships are acquired separately or as part of a business combination.

For those customer lists and customer contracts or relationships acquired separately, an intangible asset is recognised on the basis of the costs to acquire the customer lists and
customer contracts and relationships together with any directly attributable costs of acquiring the asset.

For mose customer lists and customer contracts and relationships acquwed as part of a business combination, the fair value of the asset is recognised at the date of the acquisition, in
d with IFRS 3 (revised).

Customer lists and customer contracts and relationships are amortised on a straight line basis over their expected useful economic lives, which are consndered to be between 3 and 11
years. These are assumed to have no residual value at the end of their expec(ed useful economic life.

{d} Brands

Brands are acquired separately or as part of a business combination. For those brands acqulred separately, an i gible asset is r i on the basis of the costs to acquire the
brands together with any directly attributable costs of acquiring the asset. For those brands acquired as part of a busmess combination, the fair value of the asset is recognised at the
date of the acquisition, in accordance with IFRS 3 (rewsed)

Brands are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful economic lives, which are considered to range from 10 to 25 years. These are assumed to have no residual
value at the end of their expected useful economic life. .

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed during each financial year. An asset's carrying amount is written down i
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

ly to its rec amount if the asset’s carrying amount

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful economic life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed .for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items. Cost comprises direct purchase costs and overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incumred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 2 months overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The camrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of a trade receivables impairment account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within direct purchase cost. When a trade receivable is uncollectable it is written off against the trade receivables impairment account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited in the consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank (being the cash book balance) and in hand, short-term deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less held for the purpose of meeting shon term cash i its. Bank o fts are presented in current tiabilities to the extent that there is no sight of offset with
cash balances.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantlvely enacted at the date of the statement of financial position. Management periodically -
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provtsxons where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax aulhonnes .

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or toss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the date of the statement of financiat position and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised. Deferred income tax is measured on an undiscounted
basis.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies {(continued)

Employee benefits

Management incentive plans .

In the UK certain employees of Fresh Direct are part of a management incentive scheme which falls within IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’. There scheme is based upon the performance of
the Fresh Direct Group. Any liability arising during the year resutting from an increase of value of the scheme would be included within the income statement.

Retirement benefit
The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined benefit pension plans

Following the amendment to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits' issued in D 2004 and quently revised in June 2011, the Group has adopted an accounting policy whereby
actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit pension schemes are taken through the consolidated of prehensive income in full each year, and the full deficit on an IAS 19
basis is included within the consolidated statement of financial position.

In the UK the Group operates a defined benefit funded pension scheme covering a number of its employees. The scheme is a contracted out defined benefit scheme, providing final
salary reftated benefits accrued for each year of service. The scheme was made fully paid up at 31 December 2003 and no further benefits are accruing to members subsequent to this
date. In addition, in Brakes Continental Europe Division and Sweden the Group is liable for certain post employment benefits which meet the criteria of a defined benefit plan. These
obligations are of an unfunded nature.

The charge in the consoli income 1t in respect of the defined benefit pension plans comprises a net interest expense / income calculated as the product of the net defined

benefit liability / asset and the discount rate as determined at the beginning of the year. The net interest expense / income is recognised in finance costs / income. Past-service costs
are recognised immediately in income.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in réspect of the defined benefit pension scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obtigation at the date of the
statement of financial position less the fair vatue of the plan assets. The independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method and assumptions agreed with the trustees and
directors, calculates the defined benefit obligation annually. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is ined by discounting the estimated future cash flows using
interest rates of high-quality' corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

The defined benefit pension obligation has been calculated by the scheme actuary for each reporting date, using the projected unit credit method and assumptions agreed wnh the
Group {see note 17 to the financial statements).

Actuariat gains and losses arise from experience adjustments (the effects of differences between previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and changes in
actuarial assumptions. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in-full, in the year they occur, in the statement of comprehensive income.

Defined contnbution plans .

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to independently administered pension plans on a contractual basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due.

Provisions . '
Provisions are formed for legally enforceable or constructive obligations existing on the date of the statement of financial position, the settlement of which is likely to fequire outflow of
resources and the extent of which can be reliably estimated. Where material to the financial statements, provisions are discounted over the life of their expected cash flows.

Trade payables and other payables

-Trade pay are non int t-bearing and are stated at amortised cost.

Leases

Leases in which substanually all of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the Group are classified as finance leases. Assets acquired under finance leases are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as property, plant and equipment at their fair value, or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease and are depreciated over the shorter of their useful lives and the lease term. The capital element of future rentals is treated as a liability. Rentals are apportioned
between reductions of the respective liabilities and finance charges, which are dealt with under finance’costs in the consotidated income statement.

Rentals paid under operating leases (those leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor) are charged to the consclidated income
statement over the term of the lease.
Foreign currencies )

Items included in the financial statements of the Group's subsidiary companies are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the subsidiary operates
(‘the functional currency’). The consoli d financial are presented in sterling, which is the Group's presentational currency.

Foreign cumrency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant functional currency at the rates of exchange nuling at the date of the consoli of fi jal position.
Differences arising on translation are charged or credited to the consolidated income 1t except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges. :

The income ats of foreign subsidiary companies are translated into sterling at monthly average exchange rates for the Euro and Swedish Krona at 1.38 (2014: 1.24) and 12.89
(2014: 11.27) respectively and the of financial position are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the statements of financial position being 1.36 (2014: 1.29) for
Euros and 12.46 (2014: 12.21) for Swedish Krona. On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net ir it in foreign subsidiaries, and of borrowings

. designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. These exchange differences are disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’ equity within other

reserves. .
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Borrowings and finance costs
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value (being the issue proceeds), less attributable transaction costs.

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest hod. A ised cost is adjusted for the amortisation of any transaction costs. The' amortisation
is recognised in finance costs. Transaction costs are amortised over the expected term of the related financial instruments.

All borrowings denominated in currencies other than stering are translated at the rate ruling at the statement of financial position date.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financiat
position date.

Finance income
Finance income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following catagory loans and receivables. The classification is based on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Manag: ines the ification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in cument assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 menths after the date of the statement of financial position. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise ‘rade
and other receivables’ and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.
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Derivative financial instruments .
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, principally commodity swaps to hedge the diesel price and interest rate caps to manage the interest rate risk on interest payments. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently re-measured at fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain
or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

- hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecasted transaction (cash ﬂaw hedge)

- hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge).

The Group documents at or near to the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.

The fair value of derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 18 (b). Movements 6n the hedging reserve in shareholders' equity are shown in note 22. The
full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than one year and as a current asset or liability
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than one year. .

(a) Cash flow hedges .
The effective portion of changes in the falr value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recogmsed in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is d diately in ‘finance costs - net’ in the consolidated income it

Amounts accumulated in equity are recy in the i income 1t in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The gain or loss relating to the effective
portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in the consoli d income within ‘finance costs - net. The gain or loss relating to the meffecnve
portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in the consoli income 1t within ‘finance costs - net’.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or where a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gafn or loss existing in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the consoli income t. When a forecast transaction is no fonger expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the consoli income 1t within ‘finance costs - net'.

(b) Net investmeit hedge
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similary to cash flow hedges.

Any gam or loss on the hedgmg instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
ly in the idated income 1t within *finance costs - net. Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the consofidated income statement when the
foreign,operatlon is partially disposed of or sold.

Share capital

Where the Company issues shares or other financial instruments, these financial instruments are classified as a financial liability, financial asset or equity according to the substance of
the contractual arrangement, or its component parts. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in the same respective category to which the costs
relate. Dividends or interest arising on such financial instruments are recognised according to the classification of the financial instrument.

Share based payments ’

The Group operates a management incentive plan where certain employees can subscribe for share capital and loan notes in the parent ing Cucina Ir (UK) 3 Limited.
The Group determines the fair value of equity instruments granted to employees at the date of the grant. Vesting conditions, other than market conditions, are not taken into account
when estimating the fair value. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number options that are expected to vest. If material, the Group would recognise an
amount within employee benefit expense in the consolidated income statement during the vesting period based on the expected number of equity instruments which will vest.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates
The Group makes judgements and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounnng estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The |udgements

and key sources of estimation that have a signi it risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.
(a) i review of g

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment loss, in accordance with the accounung policy stated above. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
(CGUs) have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates in relation to future cash flows and suitable discount rates as
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements. Actual outcomes could vary from these estimates.

" A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the key assumptions used for assessing the goodwill. The directors have concluded that there is no impairment beacuse they have
headroom of recoverable amounts in excess of carrying values and it is considered that there are no reasonably possible changes in key assumptions which would cause the carrying
amount of goodwill to exceed its value-in-use.

(b) Impairment review of brands and customer contracts and relationships
In addition to testing annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment the Group also tests annually for brands and customer contracts and relationships to see if they have
suffered any impairment.

A sensitivity analysis has been p'erforfned on the key assumptions used for assessing the brands and customer contracts and relatibnships. The directors have concluded that for the UK
and Ireland, BCED and Sweden there is no impairment beacuse they have headroom of recoverable amounts in excess of carrying values and it is considered that there are -no
reasonably possible changes in key assumptions which would cause the carrying amount of brands and customer contracts and relationships to exceed the value-in-use.

() ploy - defined p

One of the key assumptions used in determlnlng the valuation at 31 December 2015 is the UK discount rate of 3.8%. Whilst the directors consider that the adoption of a 3.8% discount
rate is appropriate if the rate used had been 0.2% higher or lower the retirement benefit obligation would have been approximately £8.1m lower or higher. Another key assumption used
in determining the valuation is the mortality assumption. if the average life expectancy in years of pensioner retiring was 1 year higher or lower than that used in the valuation the
retirement benefit obligation would have been approximately £7.1m higher or lower.

(¢) Incoms taxes - deferred taxation

The group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the group's provision for deferred taxation. There are certain terms for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The group recognises liabilities and assets for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due or
recoverable. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

A deferred tax asset of £7.5m is recognised in respect of certain UK tax losses. The key assumption used in recognition of this asset is based upon a track record of generating taxable
profits over the past five years and management’s forecasts for taxable profits for the next five years, and the assumption that the losses will be available for utilisation. [f the tax losses
were subsequently found not to be available for utifisation against taxable profits then the deferred tax asset would no longer be recogmsed and there would be a charge of £7.5m in
income taxes in the consolidated income .
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Notes to the financial statements

1.A ing policies (continued)

Critical ing jt 1its and estil {continued)

{e) Funding, liquidity, going concern and covenant compliance .

The Group actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term facilities that are designed to ensure the Group has sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansions.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (comprises undrawn borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flow. The
Group maintains liquidity through available cash reserves and undrawn committed borrowing facilities available primarily through its Senior Facilities Agreements. The senior banks
monitor the Group's performance through quarterly covenant tests, with the Group reporting headroom on all covenant testing during the year ended 31 December 2015 and with
management forecasts indicating continued covenant headrcom throughout 2016.

_In assessing whether the financial statements for the Group are prepared on the going concem basis, the Directors have considered the future outlook of the Group. Having considered
the future operating profits, cash flows and facilities available to the Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient funds to repay its liabilities as they fall due.
Consequently, the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

{f) Exceptional cost policy .
The Group’s accounting policy for exceptional items requires items of income and expense that are considered to be material and outside the nomal course of business to be disclosed
separately in the financial statements. Determining which items meet this definition requires judgement, particularly in relation to employee and other costs which require classification
between exceptional items and those incurred in the normal course of business. Note 2 to the financial statements describes the nature of the Group’s exceptional items. Certain
employee costs within Business Change and transitional dual running costs incurred within the Restructuring of the UK Distribution Network require the most degree of judgement.

(g) Business combinations

The recognition of business combinations requires the excess of the purchase price of acquisitions over the net book value of assets acquired to be allocated to the assets and liabilities
of the acquired entity. The Group makes judgements and estimatés in relation to the fair value allocation of the purchase price. if any unallocated portion is positive it is recognised as
goodwill and if negative, it is recognised in the income statement. :
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2. Revenue and operating profit

2015 * 2014
£m £m
Revenue - products 3,295.0 . 3,094.2
Direct purchase cost : 3 (2,461.9) {2,352.2)
Trading profit 833.1 7420
Distribution and selling costs - . {613.4) ) (538.1)
Gross profit ) 219.7 2029
Administrative expenses : . LR : (}0.8) . (87.9)
Exceptional items (see below) {48.6) (38.3)
Amortisation of intangible assets i {18.4) (11.6)
Total administrative expenses {1567.8) {137.8)
Group operating profit . 61.9 65.1
The Group's revenue primarily comprises of sales to customers within the United King { ing the Republic of Ireland) ing to £2,267.7m (2014: £2,109.4m), within BCED amounting to
£691.5m (2014: £537.4m) and Sweden amounting to £435.8m (2014: £447.4m).
The Group operating profit is all derived from continuing operations.
2016 2014 .
£m £m
Employment costs {note 24) | 404.4 354.3
Inventories
- cost of i i ised as an expense (i in direct purch: cost) - 2,449.3 2,3440
- write downs and losses incurred in the year 8.6 4.0
Amortisation of intangible assets. . 18.4 1.6
Impairment of intangible assets . - 0.1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment -
- owned assets . 29.2 - 227
- assets held under finance leases ’ N 13.0 12.2
{Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (2.2) 09
Property, plant and equipment impairment loss 0.2 23
Other operating lease rentals payable : .
- plant and machinery 143 133
- property . 249 . 252
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on property, plant and equipment X . 33.8 298
Trade receivables impairment (note 11) 2.6 1.6
Exceptional items.
- Business change costs . 58 6.4
- Business exit costs . 0.3 13.2
- R ing of the UK distribution network 18.1 ) 133
- Other UK restructuring costs and other costs 6.2 23
- Brake France Service SAS restructuring costs . : 0.5 . . 0.7
- Menigo Foodservice AB restructuring costs . - . 0.1 07
- Transaction fees . 17.6 1.7
Total exceptional items 48.6 : 38.3
Business change costs
Business change costs relate to two specific change programmes across the Group; one related to the i ion of itip) services across the UK and the second being a
restructuring and outsourcing of the IT service delivery model. In both 2014 and 2015, costs relate to fees paid to external consullants advising on both programmes and salary costs of the dedicated
internal imptementation teams. The change prog are antici 10 in 2017 at which. point these costs will cease 10 be incurred. Such costs have been presented in the ‘Exceptional

iteins’ line in the income statement as they are considered outside of the normal course of business and to assist in a better understanding of the trading and financial results of the Group.

Business exit costs

Business exit costs consist of provisions for onerous leases, asset impairments, redundancies and other cost / losses relating to business lines exited. In 2014, these costs related to the exit of
manufacturing operations in Flint and Torquay and the exit of operations in South East London, including the losses associated with these businesses to ensure that Adjusted EBITDA reflected the
ongoing base business of the Group. In 2015, further costs associated with closure of operations in South East London were incurred. Included within this amount for the year ended ‘31 December 2014
was a property provision of £2.0m, the amount remaining on the statement of financia! position at 31 December 2015 in relation to this was £1.7m (2014: £2.0m).

R ing of the UK distribution network

The Group is in the process of undergoing a large scale slraleguc fve-year reorganisation programme initiated in 2012 and expected to conclude in 2016. The p| involves a hau!
of the dlsmbunon network end ing of the i fon systems’ i other smaller projects. The Group has incurred signifi costs on i teams i to manage
the p and it dual running costs incurred during the course of transferring volumes from closing sites to new sites and associated provision for onerous contracts and

other liabilities. These costs wili cease to be incurred upon the conclusion of the programme. Such costs have been presented in the ‘Exceptional items' line in the income statement as they are
considered outside of the normal course of business and to assist in a better understanding of the trading and financial results of the Group. Included within this amount for the year ended 31 December
2015 is a property provision retease of £1.3m (2014: property provision £1.4m), there was no amount remaining on the statement of financial position at 31 December 2015 in retation to this (2014:
£1.3m).

Other UK restructuring and other costs

Other UK restructuring costs of £6.2m (2014: £2.3m) primarity relate to redundancy costs incurred from permanent headcount re€ductions (other than those incurred in refation to the UK distribution
network described above) and asset impairments relating to certain properties held for sale. These costs are considered outside of the normal course of business. Included within this amount for the year
ended 31 December 2015 is a property provision of £0.6m (2014: £nil), the amount remaining on the statement of financial position at 31 December 2015 in relation to this was £0.6m (2014: £nil).

Brake France Service SAS restructuring costs .
Brake France Service SAS incurred restructuring costs in relation to roles from the busi during the year and other restructuring costs.
N \ v

Menigo Foodservice AB restructuring costs

Menigo Foodservice AB incurred restructuring costs in relation to roles from the busil during the year and other ¢estructuring costs. .
Transaction fees

ion costs are for i and legal fees incurred by advisors acting on behalf of the Group and include the costs associated with both the Fresh Direct and Davnge! acquisitions as well as
costs of considering the future strategic options for the Group. £14.0m of the costs related to the Fresh Direct and Davigel isition and these incl legal, N gic and financial due

diligence. £3.6m of costs were incurred in respect of considering the future strategic options for the Group. In 2014 the charges in respect of transacuons costs arose from previous acquisitions and for
fees for considering market opportunities.

~
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2. and ing profit (
Auditors
During the year the Group (i ling its iaries) ined the ing services from the Group's auditors and its associates at the following costs:

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the parent company amounted to £0.1m (2014: £0.1m). Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services are detailed
as follows:

. 2015 2014
Other services: £m £m
The audit of the pany's parent and idiary ki : 0.6 0.3
Tax compliance service 01 01
Other non-audit services . 0.8 . 0.1,
) 14 0.5
3. Finance costs - net .
2015 2014
£m ) £m
Finance costs: . ‘ . .
Bank loans . {5.0) 4.8)
Other loans and charges (2.1) ) ©.7
Amortisation of debt issue costs ‘ (1.0} [( X))
Finance leases . 3.2 (2.9)
Net interest on net defined benefit liability (note 17) i {2.0) (2.0)
Total ﬁﬁance costs o M {13.3) ; (10.4)
Finance income:
Interest income on short term deposits coe 0.5 0.5
Other interest income - 0.1
Loans to parent undertakings . “ 251 19.8
Foreign exchange gains on financing activities : - 0.3
Total finance income ' 256 ‘ 20.7
N B
Finance costs - net 12.3 10.3
4. Income tax charge
Taxation is based on the profit for the year and comprises: 2015 . 2014
£m £m
Current tax .
- current year group relief 151 10.1
- adjl in respect of previous years - 43 0.3
- overseas taxation : ~ 76 36
Deferred taxation .
- origination and reversal of temporary differences : 08 36
- adj in respect of previous years . [kX4) -
- recognition in respect of previous years tax losses : . : (0.8) 5.2)
- impact of change in UK tax rate - ©.1)
- overseas deferred taxation 0.7) (0.9)
Income tax charge . ) 226 11.9
A reconciliation of the tax charge for the year compared to the effective rate of ion tax is i below:
! 2015 2014
£m : £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 74.2 75.4
A120.25% (2014: 21.5%) . . ) . 15.0 16.2
Effects of: . .
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous years 4.3 0.3
ji in respect of previous years (3.7) . ‘ -
Tax losses not giving rise to current year relief . - . 0.7
in respect of previ years tax losses (0:8) 5.2)
Re-measurement of deferred tax - change in the UK tax rate - , (0.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes and other adjustments . 7.8 -
Tax charge 22.6 11.8
The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK reduced from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015 resulting in an effective rate for the financial year of 20.25%.
Further reductions to the UK and French corporation tax rates were enacted by 31 D 2015. The changes in UK the ion tax rate will be to reduce the rate by 1% to 19':/., from 1 April 2017
and by a further 1% to 18% from 1 April 2020. In France the tax rate will reduce from 38.0% to 34.43% from 1 January 2017.
tn addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been ised in other pi ive income.
‘ 2015 2014
£m - M £m
Current tax
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: .
Overseas taxation on reti benefit obligati ial gains and losses {0.2) 0.3
Deferred tax .
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: .
Deferred tax on retirement benefit obligation actuarial gains and losses . 19 . {3.0)
Items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss: ) t .
Detferred tax on cash flow hedges (see note 19) - . {0.5) )
. 1.7 (3.2)

Page 20 «



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes to the financial statements

5. Profit of the Parent Company for the financial year

The company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Ci ies Act 2006 and ly has not p an income The 's profit for the financial year amounted to £51.2m
(2014: £35.4m). 0

6. Goodwill
Group Company
£m £m
Cost and net book value
At 1 January 2015 . 151.1 28.2
Exchange adjustment A (2.0} .-
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) 36.3 -
At 31 December 2015 . 185.4 ' 28.2
Group Company
£m £m
Cost and net book value
At 1 January 2014 153.8 . 28.2
Exchange adjustment i 2.7 -
At 31 December 2014 : : 151.1 28.2

The goodwill has been allocated to cash-generating units ("CGUs") and a summary of the carrying amounts of goodwill by business segments {representing groups of CGUs) is as follows:

2015 2014
£m £m
v
UK and Ireland ) s 1348 . 97.8
BCED . 24.3 27.0
Sweden 26.3 ) 26.3
Cost and net book value 185.4 N 151.1

In the UK and Ireland segment the core foodservice CGUs comprises Broadline, Country Choice, M&J Seafood Freshfayre, (reland and Fresh Direct. In BCED it principally comprises the wadmg
companies Brake France Service SAS and Davigel SAS and in.Sweden it princi ises the trading y Menigo F AB.

Within the UK and Ireland the significant balances of goodwill are £35.2m (2014: £35.2m) for Broadline, £26.6m (2014: £26. Gm) for Country Choice, £36.7m for M&J (2014 £36.7m) and £36. 3m (2014:
£nil) for Fresh Direct.

Impairment reviews .
. An overview of impairment reviews performed by is set out below. The recoverable amount of a CGU is ined on value-i i These cal ions use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on internal pp! by ing the next period. Subsequent cash flows beyond are extrapolated using the gsﬁmated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions in the value in use calculations were:

.
- Revenue growth. This was based on expected levels of activity under existing major contractual arrangements together with growth based upon medium term historical growth rates and having regard
for ic and market itions for other

- Operating cost growth. This assumption was based upon
conditions.

's ctati for each signil product line, having regard for D¢ and hanges in market

- Discount rates. The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections ar-e based on an appropriate weighted average cost of capital for the Group and reflect specific risks relating to the refevant
operating segments. .

)
- Long term GDP growth rate. The tong term growth rates applied to the cash flow projections are based on ic fo refating to the relevant operating segments.

The forecasts are based on the plan g the next financial year. Subsequent cash flows have heen lovecas( to increase by 2.5% for all CGUs in the UK and Ireland, 1.6% in
BCED and 3.5% in Sweden (2014 2.6% for aII CGUSs) in line with the long term GDP growth rate and i ing inflation, ions based on historical growth. The
cash flows in the g were using pre-tax discount rates of 8.4% (2014: 10.1%) in the UK and treland, 10 2% (2014: 11.3%) in BCED and 8.1% (2014: 9.1%) in Sweden.
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7. Intangible Assets

Customer

contracts end Computer
Brands relationships software Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015 | 6.1 15.3 . 91.0 1124
Exchange adjustment 0.2 - ©.7) (0.5)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) 16.2 348 1.1 51.1
Additions - - 123 123
Disposals - - {10.1) (10.1)
At 31 December 2015 216 50.1 . 936 165.2
Accumulated amortisation .
At 1 January 2015 . 1.2 10.5 58.6 70.3
Exchange adjustment . - (0.8) 0.8)
Charge for the year 0.8 3.8 13.7 184
Disposats - - {10.1) (10.1)
At 31 December 2015 2.1 14.3 61.4 77.8
Net book value at 31 December 2015 19.4 35.8 32.2 87.4
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands selationships © software Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost ’ -
At 1 January 2014 6.1 . 15.3 84.4 105.8
Exchange adjustment - - 2.1) 2.4
Additions - - 15.7 15.7
Disposals. - - (7.0) (.0)
At 31 December 2014 6.1 15.3 91.0 1124
Accumutated amortisation R
At 1 January 2014 ! 1.0 9.3 56.9 67.2
Exchange adjustment - - {1.6) (1.6)
Charge for the year 0.2 1.2 10.2 116
Impairment loss . - 0.1 0.1
Disposals - - (7.0) (1.0)
At 31 December 2014 1.2 10.5 58.6 703
Net book value at 31 December 2014 4.9 4.8 32.4 421
Customer
P contracts and Computer
Brands refationships software Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015 22 6.4 7.2 79.8
Intercompany transfer - - [{R)] (1.1
Additions - - 9.4 9.4
Disposals - - (9.5) (8.5)
At 31 December 2015 2.2 6.4 70.0 78.6
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2015 0.5 46 429 48.0
Intercompany transfer - - (.1 (1.1)
Charge for the year 0.1 0.6 8.7 104
Disposats - - (8.5) (9.5)
At 31 December 2015 0.6 5.2 420 47.8
Net book value at 31 December 2015 1.6 1.2 28.0 30.8
Customer
. contracts and Computer
Brands refationships. software Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost ‘
At 1 January 2014 22 6.4 58.5 &7.1
Additions - - 12.7 12.7
At 31 December 2014 22 6.4 7.2 79.8
- .
Accumulated amortisation .
At 1 January 2014 0.4 38 34.9 38.2
Charge for the year 0.1 0.7 7.9 ‘8.7
Impairment loss - - 0.1 0.1
At 31 December 2014 0.5 46 42.9 48.0
31.8

Net book value at 31 December 2014

1.7 1.8 28.3

The impairment loss in the Group and Company in 2014 relates to impaired software as a result of

reportable business segment.

of
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8 (a). Property, plant and equipment

Information

Land and Motor Plant and technology
buildings vehicles equipment hardware Total
Group £m £m £m - £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015 174.0 150.3 129.5 339 487.7
Exchange adjustments (1.3) (3.2) (2.6) ©0.1) 7.2
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) 59.9 8.6 33.7 1.1 104.3
Reclassified as held for sale (18.8) . (14.3) (0.5) (33.6)
Additions 7.9 38.2 15.3 1.9 733
Disposals (7.0) (18.7) a7 {4.2) 37.6)
At 31 December 2015 2147 176.2 153.9 421 586.9
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015 75.3 v 7.7 93.6 30.2 278.8
Exchange adjustment (1.5) (2.8) (3.0) 0.1 (7.2)
Charge for the year 8.1 21.7 10.2 22 422
Impairment loss - - 0.2 - 0.2
On assets reclassified as held for sale {13.1) - (12.8) {0.5) (26.4)
Disposals 6.9) (16.7) (7.5) 2 (35.3)
At 31 December 2015 61.9 81.9 80.7 27.8 252.3
Net book value at 31 December 2015 152.8 94.3 73.2 14.3 334.6
Information
Land and Motor Plant and technology
buildings vehicles equipment hardware Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost E
At 1 January 2014 165.2 1416 1331 335 473.4
Exchange adjustments 5.0) 2.7 (22), 0.4) (10.3)
Reclassification 07 - N 0.7) - -
Additions 221 27.7 111 16 - 625
Disposals . (9.0) (16.3) (11.8) (0.8) (37.9)
At 31 December 2014 174.0 150.3 129.5 33.9 487.7
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014 74.4 773 98.1 29.0 278.8
Exchange adjustment (2.5) (1.4) {1.6) 0.3) 5.8)
Reclassification 0.7 - 0.7) -
Charge for the year 6.0 18.1 8.5 23 U9’
Impairment loss N 2.2 . - o1 - 23
Disposals (5.5) (14.3) (10.8) {0.8) (31.4)
At 31 December 2014 753 ) 79.7 93.6 30.2 278.8
Net book value at 31 December 2014 98.7 70.6 35.9 3.7 208.9
Land and buildings comprise: °
2015 2014
£m £m
Cost
Freehold 147.6 108.8
Long teasehold 9.7 95
Short leasehold 57.4 55.7
2147 ' 1740
Accumulated depreciation .
Freehold 433 55.6
Long teasehold 4.3 4.0
Short leasehold 14.3 157
61.9 753
Assets held under finance (eases have the following net book amount: .
2018 2014
‘ £m £m
Cost 118.5 797
Accumulated depreciation i - {62.2) (39.1)
Net book amount 56.3 40.6
Land and buildinigs 7.6 55
Motor vehicles 48.7 35.0
Plant and equipment - 0.1
Net book amount 56.3 40.6
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8 {a). Property, plant and equipment {continued)

tnformation
Land and Motor Plant and technology
. . buildings vehicles equipment hardware Total
Company . i £m £m £m- £m £m
Cost .
At 1 January 2015 . 105.4 114.9 81.9 284 330.6
Intercompany transfer ~ . (0.3) 3.3) (0.1) 3.7)
Reclassified as held for sale (18.8) - (14.3) 0.5) {33.6)
Additions. 4.1 24.9 6.1 10.4 45.5
Disposats (6.1) (14.5) (4.8) (4.1 {29.5)
At 31 December 2015 84.6 125.0 85.6 34.1 309.3
Accumulated t’iepve‘ciation‘
At 1 January 2015 40.9 62.0 60.4 258 189.1
Intercompany transfer - 0.2) (3.1) - (3.3)
Charge for the year \ 5.1 14.0 4.0 1.4 245
Impairment loss - - 0.2 - 0.2
On assets reclassified as held for sate (13.1) - {12.8) 0.5 (26.4)
Disposals N {6.1) (12.8) (5.2) [CR)] {28.2)
At 31 December 2015 26.8 63.0 435 228 155.9
Net book value at 31 December 2016 57.8 62.0 221 11.5 153.4
. information
Land and Motor Plant and technology
buildings vehicles equipment hardware Total
Company £m £m - £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2014 - 92.0 105.3 86.1 276 311.0
Additions 18.5 213 5.8 1.0 46.6
Disposals (5.1) .7 (10.0) {0.2) 27.0)°
At Decembe:r 2014 105.4 114.9 81.9 28.4 330.6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014 , 37.8 60.4 65.3 245 188.0
Charge for the year 3.2 11.6 4.1 1.5 20.4
tmpairment loss 22 - 0.1 - t23
Disposals (2.3) {10.9) {9.1) {0.2) {21.6)
At 31 December 2014 40.9 62.0 - 604 258 189.1
Net book value at 31 December 2014 645 52.9 215 26 141.5
Land and buildings comprise: .
208 2014
£m £m
Cost .
Freehold . 248 48.8
Long leasehold 9.7 9.5
Short leasehold 50.1 47.1
84.6 105.4
Accumulated depreciation
Freehold 10.9 26.6
Long leasehold 4.2 4.0
Short leasehold 1.7 10.3
26.8 40.9
-
Assets ﬁeld under finance leases have the following net book amount:
2018 2014
£m £m
Cost or valuation . 46.4 436
Accumulated depreciation (25.2) (23.4)
Net book amount 21.2 20.2
Motor vehictes 21.2 20.2
Net book amount 21.2 20.2

The impairment toss of £0.2m in the Group and Company 2015 relates to non-current assets held for sale (note 8(b)) and in 2014 of £2.3m relates to impaired assets as a result of non-core restructuring
of operations in South East London, part of the UK and Ireland reportable business segment,
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8 (b). Assets classified as held for sale

As part of the UK distribution network program the Group transferred operations from four depots across the country to three new multi-temperature depots. At the year end the Group had a committed

plan to sell the four properties and was actively

2016. :

them fora

price. ltis that all prop

will be sold in 2016 with two expecting to exchange contracts in the first quarter of

The assets have been remeasured to £7.2m which is the lower of their net book value and fair value less costs to sell and have been reclassified to current assets. The previous net book value of the
assets was £7.4m and the resulting impairment loss of £0.2m has been recognised in excepticnal costs. .

performance of the Group.

During the year the Company acquired investments in Cucina Fresh Finance Limited and in Cucina French Holdings Limited {See note 23 for further information).

The subsidiary 8t 31D

Name of Company

2015 are listed as follows: .

Country of
corporation

Percentage

interest held Operating in;

The principal trading sub 4
Brake Bros Foodservice Limited

M&J Seafood Limited .

Wild Harvest Limited

Pauleys Produce Limited

Fresh Direct (UK) Limited

Freshfayre Limited

Brake Bros Receivables Limited
Brakes Foodservice NI Limited

Brake Bros Foodservice Irefand Limited
Brake France Service SAS

Menigo Foodservice AB

Davige! SAS

- Name of Company

. Information
Land and Motor Plant and technology
ildil i : i hard Total
Group and Company £m £m £m £m £m
Cost 18.8 - 143 05 336
Depreciation {13.1) - - (12.6) (0.5) {26.2)
Net book value prior to reclassification N 8.7 . 1.7 - 74
Impairment = - 02) - {0.2)
Non current assets held for sale at 31 December 2015 5.7 - 1.5 - 7.2
9, Investments in subsidiaries
tnvestment in subsidiary undertakings (equity) .
. Atcost Provision Net book value
* Company £m £m £m
At1 January 2015 A s ! 240.0 (51.9) 188.1
Additions 40.1 - 40.1
At 31 December 2015 280.1 (51 :9) 228.2
" Investment in subsidiary undertakings {equity)
At cost Provision Net book value
Company. £m £m £m
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 240.0 (51.9) 188.1
Investments are recm’ded at cost, which is the fair value of consideration paid. The directors consider that the value of the are by the assets and the future

Other subsidiary undertakings are as follows:

Trading companies:
Servicestyckarna i Johanneshov AB
Isakssons Frukt & Gront AB
Fruktserice | Helsingborg AB
Restaurangakademien AB

Brake Continental.Europe Division SAS
Brake France Développement
Fresh Direct Limited

Davige! Espana S.A.

Davigel Belgilux SA

Houdebine SAS

Non-trading holding companies:
Cucina Fresh Investments Limited
Cucina Fresh Finance Limited
Fresh Direct Group Limited

Fresh Holdings Limited

Cidron Food Holding S.ar.t.

Cidron Food Services S.ar.l.
Cucina French Holdings Limited
Brake France SAS

Daviget Equity Holdings SA
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ings are all involved in the supply of frozen, chilled and ambient foods as well as catering supplies and equipment to the catering industry and are as follows:
England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
England and Wates 75.00% United Kingdom
England and Wates 75.00% United Kingdom
England and Wales 75.00% United Kingdom
England and Wales 75.00% United Kingdom
England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Northern Ireland 100.00% United Kingdom
Republic of ireland 100.00% Republic of Ireland
France 100.00% France
Sweden 66.67% Sweden
France 100.00% France
Country of Percentage
corporation interest held
Sweden 66.67%
Sweden 66.67%
Sweden 66.67%
Sweden 33.34%
France 100.00%
France 100.00%
England and Wales 75.00%
Spain 100.00%
Belgium . 100.00%
France 100.00%
%
England and Wales 100.00%
England and Wales 75.00% .
England and Wales 75.00%
England and Wales 75.00%
Luxembourg 66.67%
Luxembourg 66.67%
England and Wales 100.00%
France 100.00%
France 100.00%
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9. in idiaries

Dormant companies and other non-trading companles

Brakes Limited England and Wales 100.00%
Campbell & Neill Limited England and Wales 100.00%
Cearns & Brown (Southern) Limited ' England and Wales 100.00%
John Morris Leasing Limited . England and Wales 100.00%
Stockflag Limited England and Wales 100.00% .
Taste of the Witd timited England and Wales 100.00%
W Pauley & Co Limited England and Wales 50.00%
‘Watson & Philip Cearns 8 Brown {South East) Limited England and Wales .. 100.00%
Woodward Foodservice Limited England and Wates 100.00%
Fresh Direct Local {Cambyridgshire) Limited England and Wales . 75.00%
Fresh Direct Local {Scotiand) Limited * . England and Wales 75.00%
Fresh Direct Local {London) Limited England and Wales 75.00%
Fresh Trading (UK)Limited . England and Wales 75.00%
Roots of Oxford Limited : England and Wales 75.00% . .
Fresh Prep (UK) Limited England and Wales 75.00%
Fresh Kitchen Limited ‘ . England and Wales 75.00%
Fresh Direct Local {Glasgow) Limited . England and Wales 75.00%
Country Fresh Direct Limited . England and Wales B 75.00%
Fresh Direct France S.a .l ’ France 75.00%
Scotia Campbell Marine Limited Scatland 100.00%
Fruktserice | Malmo AB Sweden | 66.67%
Fastighetsaktiebolaget Guidfrukten i Lund AB . Sweden . 66.67%
- Menigo Invest 1 AB . Sweden 66.67% *
Menigo Invest 2 AB < i . Sweden . . 66.67%
SCI Bianchi Montegut France 100.00%
SCI Le Dauphin France 100.00%
Financiére Du Rohein France 100.00%
SCI De Boiseau : : France ’ 100.00%
SCI De Garcelles France . 100.00%
Group Rault . France 100.00%
SCI JO Lanjouan France 100.00%
Rault Lamballe France 100.00% )
Rault Sud France . 100.00%
Ratilt Vendome . ) France 100.00%
Rault Nantes  * France 100.00%
Rault Caen . France 100.00%
10. Inventories
. Group Company
2015 2014 2018 2014
£m £m ‘ £m £m
Raw materials and consumables . ' - 9.9 .7 09’ 1.1
Finished goods and goods for resale 169.9 122.4 70.5 716
179.8 124.1 714 72.7
11. Trade and other receivables .
- Group : Company
2018 . 2014 © 2015 2014
N £m £m £m £m
Trade receivables 160.4 83.8 5.1 48
Trade receivables - factored ) 187.3 192.7 - -
Less: provision for impairment of receivables [(A)] (7.7) - -
Trade receivables - net . 3406 268.8 : 51 4.8
Amounts owed by Group undertakings . . . < . 101.4 98.4 .
Amounts owed by parent undertakings : 198.1 177.3 201.2 176.9
Loans owed by parent undertakings 4198 3603 419.Q 360.3
Loans owed by Group undertakings - - 66.6 . -
Other receivables 21.2 5.0 0.9 1.9
Prepayments 206 16.2 . 11.0 9.0
1,000.3 827.6 650.5
Less non-current portion - - - -
1,000.3 827.6 739.4 650.5
Quring the year certain subsidiary companies of !he Group sold trade recelvables to a special purpose entity, Brake Bros Receivables Limited. In accordance with IFRS 10 ("Consolidated Financiat
Statements™), Brake Bros Recei! Limited is i within the i results of the Group. Brake Bros Recewahles Limited has entered into a recourse factoring agreement with a bank and
these receivables are separately disclosed in the note above. The tion has been foras a by g (see note 15). In case Brake Bros Receivables Limited defaults under

the toan agreement, the lender has the sight to receive the cash flows from the receivables transferred. Without default, Brake Bros Receivables Limited will collect the receivables and allocate new
receivables as coflateral. The total amount ptedged as collatera! for borrowings is £187.3m (2014: £192.7m).

The creation and release of a provision for the impaired recei have been included in direct purchase costs in the income statement.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the Group's customer base being large and . Due to' this, believe there is no further credit risk
provision required in excess of the normal provision for doubtful receivables. Therefore, the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable. The group
and Company do not hold any collateral as security.

The average credit period taken on sales of goods is 35 days (2014: 34 days). Interest at various rates may be charged on overdue trade receivables.

As of 31 December 2015, Group trade receivables of £279.8m (2014: £199.2m) and Company trade receivables of £5.1m (£2014: £4.8m) were fully performing.
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11, Trade and other receivables (continued)

As of 31 December 2015, Group trade receivables of £60.6m (2014: 26942m)' were past due but not impaired. These refate to a number of customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The

ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

- Group . Company
-2015. 2014 2015° 2014
£m £m £m £m
Up to 3 months - 66:3 66.7 ° - -
3 to 6 months 4.3 25 - -
° 60.6 69.2 - -

As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of £7.3m (2014: £8.1m) were impaired and provided for. The amount of the provision was £7.1m as of 31 December 2015 (2014: £7.7m). The individually

impaired receivables mainly relate to which are in dly difficult i It was that a portion of the is d to be . The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:
Group Company
201§ 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Up to 3 months 11 1.7 - . -
3 to 6 months 1.2 18 B -
Over 8 months 5.0 4.8 - -
. 7.3 8.1 - -
The book value of trade and other receivables with a maturity of less than one year are assumed approximate to fair value.
The carrying amounts of the trade and other are in the f¢
Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Pounds 834.0 7223 737.5 649.4
Euros 1166 54.4 68.5 1.0
Swedish Krona 50.7 50.8 - 0.1
1,000.3 827.6 806.0 650.5
on the provision for impai of trade are as follows: .
Group R Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 1.7 88 - -
Exchange adjustment (0.1) 0.9) - -
Provision for receivables impairment 26 16 - -
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible (3.1) (2.4) - -
At 31 December 7.1 7.7 - -
. Due to this, believe there is no further credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk with respect 1o trade receivables are limited due to the Group's customer base being large and €
i . Therefore, the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable. The Group

provision required in excess of a normal provision for i
and Company does not hold any collatera! as security.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do contain impaired assets

12. Cash and cash equivatents

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Cash atbank andinhand - 105.8 * 842 26.6 55.8
Short term bank deposits 43.9 33.5 35.2 11.8
149.7 177 61.8 676

The effective interest rate on short term deposits was 0.25% (2014: 0.25%) and these deposits have an average maturity of 1 day {(2014: 1 day}. The effective interest rate on company cash at bank and

in hand is 0% (2014: 0%).

13. Trade and other payables

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m

Teade payables 464.0 kYR 3117 288.1
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 119.4 99.6 95.4 773
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 168.4 142.1
Other taxes and socia! security 18.3 19.1 5.5 6.0
Other payables . 446 18.3 1.3 26
Accruals 107.5 58.3 53.2 46.1
753.8 574.4 635.5 572.2

and are on demand.

Amounts owed to Group ar;d parent undertakings are

t bearing,

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 58 days (2014: 55 days). For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 60 days from the date of the invoice and
thereafter interest may be charged on the outstanding balances at various interest rates.

14. Current income tax liabilities

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Corporation tax - overseas 3.6 0.1 - -
36 0.1 - -
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185, Financial liabilities - borrowings

Group ‘ Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Curmrent . £m £m £m £m
Loans owed to parent undertakings . 8.3 83 . . 83 83"
Bank toans . . 125.0 1.0 - -
Finance lease obligations 139 1.8 57 . 6.9
1972 21.1 14.0 15.2
Group . Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Non-cuirent o £m £m £m £m
- f
Loans owed to parent undertakings 98.2 83 . 99.2 8.3
Loan notes . 0.9 0.9 -7 -
Bank loans ) 163.1 145.7 - . - -
Davigel preference share put liability 67.6 ) - - -
Debt issue costs . (2.1) (1.4) - -
Finance lease obligations 62.6 35.8 24.3 210
: /13 . 189.3 1236 293
Less amounts falling due within one year (147.2) (21.1) {14.0) . (15.2)
1 N -
2341 168.2 109.5 14.1

Bank loans amounting to £125.0m (2014: £425.0m) have been obn;ineu pursuant to a debt factoring agreement. Further information regarding this is given in note 11 of the financial statements. Senior
debt of a parent undertaking Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited is secured by way of a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Company and certain other UK assets of the Group.

The £67.6m Davigel preference share put tiability relates to preference shares issued to Nestlé on 2 November 2015 to fund the Davigel acquisition (see note 23 to the financial statements for further
details). In circumstances where Bain Capital exit their investment from the Group, Nestlé are able to exercise a put option to sell and the parent undertaking Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited can
exercise a call option to buy the Davigel preference shares. In the event of a Bain Capitat Exit by way of an initial public offering (IPO) of equity securites to trade on a stock exchange, Nesté shall take
such steps as are reasonably required by Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited to exchange the preference shares for IPO Securities for the value of the preference shares catculated at the same implied
issue price as the (PO,

The carrying amounts of the Group and C: 's ings are i in the currencies:
. . Group - Company

2015 2014 . 2015 2014
£m £m £m- £m
Pounds Sterling - : 176.3 1530 30.1 293

Euros’ 184.6 12.9 93.4 -
Swedish Krona . 204 234 - -
381.3 189.3 123.5 29.3

The maturity of borrowings is set out in note 16 (a). The exposure of the Group and the Company to interest rate changes is as follows:

Group . Company
2018 . 2014 2015 2014.
£m £m £m £m
Borrowings at floating interest rates N . . 2421 146.6 99.2 8.3
Fixed rate borrowings maturing:
- within one year N . 139 8.0 57 6.9
- one to five years 1218 330 . . 17.7 129
- over five years : 35 1.7 0.9 1.2
381.3 189.3 123.5 29.3
The effective interest rates at date of the statement of financial position were as follows:
Group Company .
2015 2014 2015 2014
Bank loans ‘ 2.9% 33% 0.0% 0.0%
Finance lease obligations : . 7.2% . 6.0% 7.1% 7.2%
Loans owed to parent undertakings . 6.5% 6.2% . 6.5% 6.2%
. 5
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16. Financial instruments

186 (a) Financial i .

Disclosures in respect of the Group's financial risks are set out below. Additional disclosures are set out in the Accounting Policies (on pages 14 to 18) and numerical disclosures in respect of financial

instruments are set out in note 16(b), 16(c) and 16(d).

Financial isk management

Financial risk factors ‘

The Group has operations in the UK, the Republic of Ireland, BCED and Sweden and has debt financing ‘which exposes it to a variety of fnanual risks that include the etfects of changes in debt market
prices, foreign currency exchange rates, credit risks, commodity price risks, liquidity and interest rates. The wider Cucina (BC) Luxco S.& r.). ("Cuuna") Group has in place a risk management

programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by using foreign currency debt to hedge

and interest hedging

agreements to limit the impact from potential future interest rate increases. Senior debt ﬁnancmg of a parent undertakmg, Cucina Acquisition {UK) Limited is senured on certain UK assets of the Group.

The qup"s board of directors have the responsibility for setting the sisk management policies applied by the Group. The policies are imptemented by the central treasury department that receives
regular reports from the operating companies to enable prompt identification of financial risks so that the appropriate actions may be taken. The Group has a policy and procedures manual that sets out
specific guidelines to manage foreign currency exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, commodity price risk, liquidity risk and the use of financial instruments to manage these.

(i) Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign risks primarily with respect to the Euro and Swedish Krona. Exposure to the Swedish Krona is not considered material.

The Group has certain investments in

foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is managed primarily through

borrowings denominated in the Euro in the wider Cucina Group.

(ii} Interest rate risk

The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities. The Group's interest rate risk primarily arises from floating interest rate long term bovrowlngs Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. During 2015, the Group's borrowings at variable rate were primarily denominated in the UK Pound. The Group analyses its interest rate exposure to
abiliti the major i

a shift in inferest rates. The Group calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift. The scenarios are run only for assets and {i
positions. Based on the simulations performed, the impact on post tax profit of a 10% shift would be a maximum increase or decrease of £1.4m (2014: £1.4m).

(iii} Credit risk

fob

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. ‘Credit risk arises from cash and cash equlvnlents as well as credit exp:

transactions. For banks, independently rated parties within the band 'A’ rating are used for the main Group banking requirements, and wherever possible for

to

y day to day op

For customers, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its fnancnal position, past experience and other factors. Induvndual risk limits are set based on lnlemal or

before sates

extemal ratings. The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on

The table below shows the credit rating and balance of the major bank counterparties at the date of the statement of financial position. A fufl analysis of cash at bank and short term deposits is included
3

in note 16(d) to the financial statements.

2015 2014

Group Balance Batance
Counterparty Rating £m Rating £m
Bank A . A 18 A -
Bank B A- 56.4 A * 69.3
Bank C AA- 1.0 AA- 1.5
Bank D A+ 344 A+ 77
Bank E A 8.1 A 7.8
Bank F A 74 A 04
Bank G AA- ‘30.8 A+ 236
Bank H BBB- 5.8 BB+ 3.8
Bank | BBB+ 04 BBB+ 14
Bank K BBB+ 0.1 A 0.1
Bank M A 23 A 21
Bank N BB8 1.4

. 149.7 117.7

2015 2014
Company Balance Balance
Counterparty Rating £m Rating £m
Bank A A 4741 A 65.0
Bank E A 123 A 0.4
Bank K A 23 A 21
Bank L A 0.1 A 0.1
61.8 67.6

Management does not expect any losses from by these
(iv} Liquidity risk
The Group actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term facilities that are designed to ensure the Group has funds for and planned

monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve {comprises undrawn borrowing facility (note 16(c)} and cash and cash equivalents {note 12}) on the basis of expected cash flow. Senior debt of a

parent undertaking Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited is secured by way of a fixed and floating charge over certain UK assets of the Group.

(v} Commodity price risk

The Group is exp to ity price risk primarily with respect to diesel purchases. The Group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the financiat
performance of the Group by using diesel fuel commodily swaps to hedge against future price changes. During the year the Group entered into a number of fuel commodity swaps to hedge against the

risk of the change in the price of diesel on anticipated future purchases (see note 16(b) for further details).

Maturity of financial liabilities
The table below analyses the Group and Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity g

based on the

maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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16. Financial instruments (continued)

16 (a) Financial i - ive discls {
Less than Between one Between two Over five
: Lo . oneyear andtwo years and five ycars * years
Group - £m £m £m £m
B Angs - i ing interest é 167.1 247 2344 33
Derivative financial instruments R 24 - P -
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities 735.5 - - -
As at 31 December 2015 - $05.0 24.7 234.4 3.3
Less than Between one Between two Over five
one year and two years  and five years years
Group £m £m £m £m:
8 gs - including interest 278" 1413 346 21
Derivative financial instruments 24 - - -
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities 555.3 - - o -
As at 31 December 2014 585.5 1413 346 2.1
* Less than Between one  Between two Over five
. oneyear andtwo years and five years years
Company - N £m £m . £m £m
B gs - i ing interest pay ’ 227 1.8 119 09
Derivative financial instruments 24 - . -
Trade and other payabtes excluding statutory liabilities 6300 ° - - -
As at 31 December 2015 655.1 11.8 . 111.9 0.9
Léss than Between one Between two Over five
“ one year and two years  and five years years
Company £m £m £m £m
B gs - il ing interest - 16.7 6.3 8.8 1.2
Derivative financial instruments A 24 - - -
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities $66.2 - - -
As at 31 December 2014 585.3 6.3 8.8 1.2

Capital risk management . . .

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue.as a going concern in order to provide returns for sharehotders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
1o reduce the cost of capital. These objectives are managed at the ultimate UK Group tevef, Cucina Lux Investments Limited, rather than at a fower Group teves.

The overall debt and equity structure of the Company is under the control of the ultimate parent company, Cucina (BC) Luxco S.a rl.. There are no external capital requirements on the Company.
Further details of the share capital of the Company can be found in note 20 of the financial statements.

16 (b) Financial instruments - by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

2015 2014
Loans and toans and
. receivables receivables
Group £m £m
At 31 December )
Assets as per statement of financial position .
Trade and other receivables . 979.7 811.4
Cash and cash equivalents ' 149.7 117.7
- 1,129.4 929.1
2018 . . 2014
Liabilities Liabilities
at fair value at fair value
through the Other financial through the  Other financial
profitand loss °  liabilities Total profit and loss {iabilities Total
Group . £m £m Em . £m £m £m
At 31 December
Liabilities as per of fil ]
Financial liabilities - borrowings - 381.3 381.3 . .- 189.3 189.3
Derivative financial instruments 30 - 30 24 . 24.
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities - 735.5 735.5 - 555.3 5553
3.0 ' 1,168 1,119.8 124 744.6 747.0
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16. Financial instruments {continued)

16 (b) Financial instruments - by category (continued)

2015 2014
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
Company £m £m
At 31 December
Assets as per statement of financial posmon
Trade and other receivables . 7950 . 641.5
Cash and cash equivalents €1.8 67.6
856.8 709.1
2015 2014
Liabilities Liabilities
at fair vatue : at fair value
through the Other financial . through the  Other financial
profit and loss liabilities Total profit and loss liabilities Total
Company < _Em £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December '
Liabilities as per of fil ial p
Financial liabilities - borrowings - - 123.5 123.5 - 293 293
Derivative financial instruments . 24 - 24 24 - N 24
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities . 630.0 630.0 - 566.2 566.2
2.4 753.5 755.9 24 595.5 597.9
16 (c). Fi i .

Fair value estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different tevels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets-for identical assets or liabilities {level 1).
- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Ievel 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either dlremly (thatis, as pm:es) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) {level 2).
- Inputs for the asset or llabllliy that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents Ihe Group and C 's liabilities that are at fair vatue at 31 December 2015. .
' .
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Group . £m £m- £m £m
Liabilities '
Forward foreign currency contracts - 0.6 - 0.6
Cash flow hedges - 24 - 24
- 3.0 - 3.0
Company
Liabilities .
Cash flow hedges - 2.4 - 24
- 2.4 - ) 24
The following tabte presents the Group and C 's fiabilities that are at fair value at 31 December 2014, .
. Levei 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Group and Company £m £m £m £m
Liabilities . .
Cash flow hedges : . - 24 - 2.4
. 2.4 - 2.4
The Group and Company does not have any financial instruments that are traded in active markets,
For all other financial i fair value is d i by using i1 i i i include net pvesenl value techniques, the discounted cash flow method, comparison to
similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, and valuation models. If all significant inputs required to fair value an are . the i isincluded in level 2. Ifone
or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
Carvying values of derivative financial instruments . <
Liabilities Liabilities
2015 2014
Group £m £m
Forward foreign currency contracts (0.6} -
Cash flow hedges 24) {2.4)
Total current portion : (3.0} : 2.4
Liabilities Liabilities
. 2015 . 2014
Company £m £m
Cash flow hedges : - 2.9) (24)
Total current portion (2.4) (2.4)

Cash flow hedges

During the year the Company entered mlo a number of fuel commodity swaps to hedge against the risk of the change in the price of diese! on anticipated future purchases The swaps all have maturity
dates in 2016 and they have all been designated as cash flow hedges. As at 31 December 2015 the aggregate amount of losses under these swaps deferred in the cash flow hedging reserve, relating to
on these antici d future i is £2.4m. Itis highly probable that the purchases will take place during 2016, at which time the amount deferred in equity will be reclassified to profit or

loss.

Page 31



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes to the financial statements '
16. Financial instruments (continued)

16 (c). Financial -

Fair values of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities .
Where market values are not availabte, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities have been by di; i d future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and by applying
year end exchange rates. The book value of short term borrowings is approximate to fair value,

Set out below are numerical disclosures in respect of the Group's financial instruments.

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

. . Book value Fair value ’ Book value Fair value
Group | £m . £m i £m £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group's operations:
Short term financial liabllities and current portion of tong term borrowings (147.2) (147.2) (21.1) (21.1)
Other tong term borrowings {234.9) (234.1) (168.2) (162.6)
Trade and other payables A . (753.8) (763.8) (574.4) (574.4)
Trade and other receivables - 979.7 979.7 811.4 811.4
Cash and cash equivalents B} 149.7 149.7 17.7 177
Retirement benefit obligations . {67.2) {67.2) {61.4) (61.4)
The book values of short-term bank deposits, loans and other borrowings with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate to their fair values. In the case of bank toans and other
borrowings due in more than one year the fair value of financial liabiliies for di: purp is esti by di ing the future cash flows at the current estimated market interest rate

availabte to the Group for similar financial instruments. .

Other fair values shown above have been estimated using valuation method level 3 by discounting cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

At 31 December 2015 . At 31 December 2014
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
Company £m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group's operations: .
Short term financial liabilities and current portion of long term borrowings . (14.0) {14.0) 15.2) (15.2)
Other long term borrowings {109.5) {109.5) (14.1) (13.1)
Trade and other payables {635.5) {635.5) (572.2) . (572.2)
Trade and other receivables 795.0 795.0 641.5 641.5
Cash and cash equivalents 618 618 67.6 67.6
Retirement benefit obligations {29.1) {29.1) “(35.0) (35.0)
Borrowing facilities
The Group headed by Brake Bios Limited has undi i ing facilities i at 31 D 2015 of £19.0m (2014: £4.1m). These are at floating interest rates and are available until
September 2018. . ' .
The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows:
Group Company
2018 2014 . 2015 2014
£m £m Em . Em
Not later than one year 7.7 139 7.4 8.4
Later than one year but not more than five T 418 254 . 211 147
More than five years 4.0 1.5 1.0 1.2
. - 63.3 40.8 29.5 243
Future finance charges on finance leases {10.7) (5.0) {5.1) (3.1}
Present value of finance lease liabilities 52.6 35.8 244 20.6
16 (d). Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impai can be by to our Group risk profile indication based upon information provided by our external credit
agencies:
Group Company
2015 2014 . 2015 2014
Em £m £m £m
Trade receivables
Low risk . B > . 189.9 129.8 5.1 49
Medium risk N ’ 60.8 §5.3 . -
High risk 29.1 14.1 - -
Total trade receivables 279.8 199.2 5.1 4.9
‘. These categories of risk reflect the retative credit risk attributable to our trade receivables.
Group . Company
2016 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and short term deposits (see note below) .
AA- . 318 15 .. -
A+ 34.4 313 . -
A 181 79.7 . 146 65.4
A- . 56.7 - 471 -
BB+ : .- 38 - : -
BBB+ . 0.5 14 [X] -
BBB . 1.4 - - -
BBB- 5.8 - - -
149.7 117.7 61.8 65.4

The sest of the statement of financial position item ‘cash and cash equivalents' is cash in hand.
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17. Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a number of pension schemes for its UK employees; the assets of all

te trustee

being held in

d funds. The pension schemes are operated by the

Company. In addition, in BCED and Sweden the Group is liable for certain post employment benefits which meet the criteria of a defined benefit plan and these obligations are of an unfunded nature.

The UK pension sch. are op: by the idiary

Brake Bros Limited and are as follows:

(i) The Brake Bros plc Pension Scheme was closed to existing employees at 31 December 2003. No further benefits are accruing to members subsequent to this date. The scheme is a funded defined

benefit pension plan. .

The scheme is administered by a §eparate board of trustees which is legally separate from Brake Bros Limited. The trustees are
an independent trustee. The trustees are required by law to act in the interest of all relevant i il

administration of the benefits.

ies and are

of

for the i

Under the scheme, members are entitled to defined annual ions on reti at normat

such as early retirement.

Brake Bros plc Pension Scheme retis benefit obligati uptoa
Group. . :
Further de(ails’on the profile of the scheme, its funding requi " and risks

{ii) The Brakes Group Personal Pension Plan was opened on { Apnl 2013 and |s a quahfymg workplace pension scheme that the Group is using to meet the
ion rates are 1% of i

It is contracted into the state pension scheme and for aut the

contribution rates of 4% or 5% of pensionable salary for members and from 4% for employ

age

ployer and the and
policy with regard to the assets plus the day to day

age 63 or age 65). Benefits are also payable on death and following other events

d with the scheme are explained later in this note,

amount of £20.0m (2014: £20.0m) are secured by way of a charge over certain property, plant and equipment of the

salary for

for

Management. ’

, with higher

and for elected members has
Funds are invested with Lega) & General lnvestment

(iii) The Brakes Money Purchase Pension Plan closed on 31 March 2015 with all existing members auto-enrolled into the Brakes Group Pevsonal Penswn Plan. Minimum contribution rates for ex-

members of the Brakes Money Purchase Pension Plan are 3% of pensionable salary for members and 4% for employers, with higher

(v} The Fresh Direct Group Personal Pension Plans whxch were opened on 1 January 2014 are
. For auts the ion rates are 1% of i salary for

pension

and for

that the Group is using to meet the automatic enrolment legislative
The funds are invested in two separate pension plans, one with The

Nanona{ Employmenl Savings Trust (NEST) and the other with The Standard Life Group. All auto-enrofled members belong to one scheme or the other, depending on their emptoyment grade.

In Sweden, the i Menigo F ice AB, provi 1!
accordance with the ITP plan y pension for i ial salaried b

with defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes. The majority of the arrangements are provided in
). The Group's employees in Sweden are provided with ITP retirement benefits via an unfunded defined benefit

plan. For certain sataried employees, the ITP pensions are secured through the insurance company Alecta. The plan is reported as a defined paid reflecting the
pension cost. .
tn BCED, for the subsidiary companies Brake France Service SAS and Davigel SAS, all benefits Départ en Retraite JIDR"). These are
that provi retirement benefits based on service and salary, with different level o! henel'ts depending an employees’ pesition and grade.
The ised in the of fis ial for defined bgneﬁt plans are set out below:
Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Present value of funded obligations 220.5 226.4 220.5 226.4
Present value of unfunded obligations 38.1 26.4 - -
Fair value of plan assets {191.4) {191.4) (191.4) (191.4)
Net pension liability recognised in the statement of financial position 67.2 61.4 29.1 35.0
The in the reti benefit during the year is as follows:
Group
UK BCED Sweden Total Group Company
2015 2015 2015 2018 2015
Retirement benefit obligations £m £m £m £m £m
At ¥ January ' 35.0 6.0 20.4 61.4 '35.0
Exchange adjustment - 0.1 (0.4) {0.3) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) - 12.5 - 12.6 -
Interest expense 13 0.2 05 20 3
Administrative expenses 0.1 . - 0.1 0.1
Current service cost - - 06 0.6 1.2 -
Contributions paid in the year 1.8) {0.3) (0.5} {2.6) (1.8)
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (5.5) {0.9) (0.7) {7.1) _(5.5)
At 31 December 29.1 18.2 19.9 67.2 29.1
The in the reti benefit in the prior year was as follows:
Group
UK BCED Sweden Total Group Company
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
Retirement benefit obligations £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 238 5.4 211 50.3 238
Exchange adjustment - (0.4) 2.8) 3.2) -
Interest expense 1.1 0.2 20 N
Administrative expenses - - 02 3
Current service cost . - 0.3 06 0.9 -
Contributions paid in the year . .1y 0.2) (o 5) (2.8) 2.1)
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 12.0 0.7 14.0 12.0
At 31 December 35.0 6.0 20.4 61.4 35.0
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17. Reti benefit , .
The amounts recognised in the income and other ive income for defined benefit plans are set out below:
Group
UK BCED Sweden Total Group Company
. . 2015 2016 © 2015 2015 2015

Retirement benefit obligations £m £m £m £m £m
Operating cost ’

Service costs: .

- Current service cost - 0.6 06 1.2 .

- Administrative expenses - 0.1 - - 0.1 0.1
Total operating costs 0.1 0.6 0.6 13 . 0.1
Financing cost
Interest expense 1.3 0.2 0.5 2.0 L 1.3
Yotal income statement charge 1.4 0.8 1.1 ) 3.3 1.4

d in other p nsive income . .

- gains from changes in demographic assumptions te {0.9) (0.7) (1.6) .

- gains from changes in financial assumptions (4.4) . - . - {4.4) (4.4)

- experience gains | . {2.5) - . {2.5) {2.5)

- losses on return on scheme assets 14 - - 14 1.4
Total amount mcognised in other comgrehensive income (5.5) ‘0.9' QJ) {7.1) - (5.5)

Group
UK BCED Sweden Group " Company
. 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014

Retirement benefit obligations £m £m £m £m . £m
Operating cost ’

Service costs: .

- Current service cost - 0.3 06 . 08 -

- Administrative expenses 0.2 - - 0.2 : 0.2
Total operating costs 0.2 0.3 . 0.6 1.4 0.2
Financing cost .

Interest expense 1.1 0.2 0.7 2.0 1.1

. Jotal income statement charge 1.3 0.5 1.3 3.4 1.3
d'in other ive income ' . .

- {gains) / losses from changes in demographic assumptions . {0.4) 0.7 1.3 16 (0.4)

- losses from changes in financial assumptions 275 . - - 275 ‘ 275

- experience gains 0.7) - - {0.7) 0.7)

- gains on return on scheme assets {(14.4} = - {14.4) {14.4)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 12.0 0.7 1.3 14.0 : 12.0
fhe amounts recognised in the income statement for defined contribution plans are set out befow:

Group Company
20156 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Defined contribution schemes 8.5 8.3 6.7 6.7

Reporting at 31 December 2015 .
The independent actuary catcutates the defined benefit obligation annually by adjusting the results of the latest triennial funding valuation at § April 2013 to the statement of financiat position date, taking
account of experience over the period since 5 April 2013, changes in market conditions, and differences in the financial and demographic assumptions. The present value of the defined benefit

is using the proj unit credit method. The principal financial and grapl ions used to liabilities for the periods ended 31 December are set out below.
2015 2014
Financial assumptions % %
UK assumptions:
Rate of increase in pensions in payment and deferred pensions . 3.0 . 3.0
Discount rate 38 .. 3.7
.Inflation assumption RPI ) 3.1 3.0
tnflation assumption CPI : .. 19 1.8
BCED assumptions: . .
Discount rate . 2.0 2.0
Salary increase 25 . 25
{nflation . 2.0 2.0
Sweden assumptions: .
Discount rate 30 2.8
Salary increase 27 27
tnfiation 1.5 - 1.5

Demographic assumptions

Mortality rate UK assumptions:
The mortality assumptions are based on the recent actual lity ( of Scheme i and a i ic analysis of the Scheme membership, and allow for expected future
improvements in mortality rates. The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the date of the statement of financial position is as follows:

2015 : 2014
Male 21.5 ° 21.4
Female 239 : 238

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 20 years after the date of the statement of financial position is as follows:

2015 2014
Male ’ 227 227

Female 25.4 . 254
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17. Reti benefit obligati {

Sens:llwly to key assumptions .
The key assumptions used for IAS 19 are: discount rate, inflation and mortality. 1f different assumptions were used in the UK, this could have a materiaf effect on the results disciosed. The sensitivity of
the reti benefit obligation to these ions is as follows.

- Following a 0.2% pa decrease in the discount rate the deficit would increase by £8.1m from £67.2m to £75.3m.

- Following a 0.2% pa increase in the F.{PI inflation ion (with ial changes in d ions) the deficit would increase by £6.3m from £67.2m to £73.5m.
- Following a 1 year increase in life expectancy the deficit would increase by £7.1m from £67.2m to £74.3m.

The sensitivity ln(ormatlon shown above has been prepared usmg the same method as adop!ed when adjusting the results of the latest funding valuation to the date of statement of financial posluon
This is the same approach as has been adopted in previous periods. Lo

Analysis of movement in present value of retirement benefit obligations during the year is as follows:

Group
UK BCED Sweden
{funded (unlunded {unfunded
igati igati igati Total Group Company
2015 2015 2015 . 2018 ! 2015
£m £m’ £m £m £m

* At 1 January 226.4 6.0 20.4 2528 226.4
Exchange adjustment - 01 " {0.4) (0.3) -
Acquisition of subslidiaries (note 23) - 12,6 - 12.6 R
Interest expense 8.1 0.2 | 0.5 8.8 8.1
Remeasurements: - ‘ <.

- gains from changes in demographic assumplwns . : - {0.9) {0.7) (1.6) -

- gains from changes in financial assumptions (4.4) - -. {4.4) . {4.4)

- experience gains {2.5) - - {2.5) (2.5)
Contributions paid by employer - . (0.3) {0.5) {0.8) -
Current service cost . - 06 06 1.2 -
Benefits paid N (7.1 - - . 7.1) (7.1)
At 31 December ) 220.5 18.2 19.9 258.6 220.5

Group
UK BCED Sweden
(funded (unfunded (unfunded
igati igati igati Total Group . Company
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
£m £m £m £m’ £m
At 1 January 196.6 5.4 211 . 2231 196.6
Exchange adjustment - (0.4) (2.8) 3.2) ° -
Interest expense 8.9 0.2 0.7 9.8 8.9
Remeasurements: - . -

- {gains) /losses from changes in demographic assumptions (0.4) 0.7 1.3 1.6 N 0.4)
- losses from changes in financial assumptions 215 - - . 275 275
- experience gains . 0.7) - - {0.7) 0.7
Contributions paid by employer - 0.2) 0.5) {0.7) -
Current service cost - 0.3 0.6 0.9 . -
Benefits paid - {5.5) - - {5.5) (5.5)
At 31 December 226.4 6.0 20.4 252.8 . 226.4
Analysis of movement in fair vafue of scheme assets during the year is as follows:

UK and Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 1914 172.8 191.4 172.8

Interest income on scheme assets .68 ©, 18 ‘ 68 7.8
Remeasurements:

- {losses) { gains on return on scheme assets (1.4) 14.4 (1.4) 14.4
Administrative expenses . . ° . (0.1} (0.2) {0.1) (0 2)
Contributions paid by employer 1.8 21 18
Benefits paid (7.1) (5.5) Ty - (5 5!
At 31 December 191.4 1914 191.4 191.4
The Plan assets are invested in the following asset classes:

2018 2014
Of which not Of which not
M quoted in an quoted in an
active market active market
£m £m £m £m

Equities . 64.6 0.6 X 50.0 -
Property 5.7 87 | 3.0. 3.0 -
Macro orientated 328 - 36.6 -
Multi strategy 10.5 . - 6.2 -

. Credit/ Corporate bonds . 233 . N 36.3 -
Government bonds . 276 - 39.7 -
Derivatives 1.5 1.5 27 26
Cash and cash equivalents 254 - 16.9 ; -
At 31 December : 1914 7.8 191.4 56
Further details on the Brake Bros pic Pension Scheme
Profile of the scheme
The defined benefit obligation includes benefits for deferred and current pensioners. Broadly, about 69% of the liabilities is attril to deferred p s and 31% to curient pensioners.

The scheme duration is an indicator of the weighted-average time until benefit payments are made. For the scheme as a whole, the duration is around 18 years reflecting the approximate split of the
defined benefit obligation between deferred pensioners (duration of 21 years) and current pensioners (duration of 12 years).

The table below i the profile of projected future benefit from the scheme.
Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension benefits .

. . Less than Between one Between two © Over
At 31 December 2015 one year  and two years_ and five years five years
Pension benefits . i - 1% 1% 4% 94%
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Notes to the financial statements

19, Deferred tax assets

The movement on the deferred tax account is as shown below:

- Group ~ Company
2015 2014 2018 2014
£m £m £m ‘Em
Deferred tax assets
At 1 January 328 27.4 28.5 237
Exchange adjustment {0.5) 0:2) - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) 17.3) - - -
Tax credit on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive income - 0.5 - 0.5
Tax (charge) / credit on retirement benefit obligations taken directly to other comprehensive income {1.9) . 30 1.2) . 23
Credited to the income statement in the year 4.4 - 2.1 2.2 2.0
At 31 December 17.5 32.8° 29.5 28.5
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to settte the balances net.
: i
Retirement Capital Other
benefit Cash flow allowances timing ‘temporary
obligations hedge differences Tax losses differences Totat
' Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets
At 1 January 2014 8.3 - 18.4 5.7 (5.0) 27.4
At 1 January 2014 reclassification to deferred tax liabilities - - - - 5.0 5.0
Exchange adjustment . (0.2) - - - - {0.2)
Tax credit on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive income - 0.5 - - - 0.5
Tax credit on retirement benefit obligations taken directly to other comprehensive income 3.0 - - - - 3.0
(Charged) / credited to the income statement in the year (0:1) - (1.9) 33 - 1.3
At 31 December 2014 11.0 0.5 16.5 9.0 - . 37.0
At 1 January 2015 1.0 0.5 16.5 9.0 - 37.0
Exchange adjustment (0.1) - - - - {0.1)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 0.8 - - 08
Tax charge on retirement benefit obligations taken directly to other comprehensive income (1.9) - - - - {1.9)
Credited / (charged) to the income statement in the year 03 - 3.7 _(1.5) - 25
At 31 December 2015 9.3 0.5 210 18 - 38.3
Property, plant
and equipment
Customer lists fair value -
and brands adjustments Other Total-
Group £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax liabilitics
At 1 January 2014 22) (1.8) 1.0 (5.0)
Credited to the income statement in the year © 02 0.3 0.3 0.8
At 31 December 2014 {2.0) (1.5) (0.7) (4.2)
At 1 January 2015 2.0} (1.5 ©.7) (4.2)
Exchange {0.2) - (0.2) (0.4)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (11.3) - (6.8) (18.1)
Credited to the income statement in the year 09 0.5 0.5 1.9
At 31 December 2015 {12.6} (1.0) 7.2) {20.8)
Net deferred tax assets at 31 December 2015 17.5
Retirement Capital Other
benefit Cash flow allowances timing . temporary
obligations hedge differences Tax losses differences Totat
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets -
At 1 January 2014 4.8 - 15.8 5.8 @7 237
At 1 January 2014 to deferred tax li - - - - 27 27
Tax credit on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive income 0.5 - . - - 05
Tax credit on retirement benefit obligations taken directly to other comprehensive income 2.3 - - - - 23
{Charged) / credited to the income statement in the year 0.1) - {1.6) 3.2 - 1.5
At 31 December 2014 7.0 0.5 14.2 9.0 - 30.7
At 1 January 2015 7.0 0.5 142 9.0 - 30.7
Tax charge on retirement benefit obligations taken directly to other comprehensive income 1.2) - - . - 1.2
Credited / {charged) to the income statement in the year - - 38 2.2) - 1.6
At 31 December 2015 5.8 0.5 18.0 6.8 - 311
l Property, plant
and equipment
Customer lists fair value
. . and brands adjustments Total
Compan - £m £m £m
Deferred tax liabilities
At 1 January 2014 0.9) (1.8) @7
Credited to the income statement in the year 0.2 0.3 0.5
)
At 31 December 2014 0.7) (1.5) (2.2)
At 1 January 2015 (0.7) (1.5) (2.2)
LCredited to the income statement in the year 0.1 9.5 0.6
At 31 December 2015 ) {0.6) {1.0) {1.6)
Net deferred tax assets at 31.December 2015 29.5

All of the deferred tax liabilities were available for offset against deferred tax asset.

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses and on temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is considered probable, based on internal forecasts,
that these assets will be recovered. There are no unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of unutilised tax tosses in the UK (2014: £0.8m). There is no expiry date for these losses. The deferred tax

charged to other comprehensive income during the year amounted to £1.9m (2014: £3.0m credit).
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20. Share capital

. 2015 2014
Group and Company £m £m
Authorised . ’

- 58,000,000 (2014: 58 000.000) ordinary shares of 10p - 5.8 5.8
) . ’ Ordinary shares .
Issued and fully paid paid of 10p each £m £m
At 31 December i 53,776,540 54 5.4
21. Reserves
. Other reserves:
Business
. comb. under Total other Total other Retained .
. Hedging common control reserves reserves earnings Total
Group - attributable to owners of the parent Company X £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2015 ' (1.9) (14.1) 8.2 (7.8) 630.4 6226
benefit obligati ial gain PR - Lo - 6.9 6.9
Taxation on retirement benefit obligation-actuarial gain . - - - - - (1.7) .0
Currency transtation differences . - - (X)) 6.7 - 6.7
Adjustments arising from change in non-controlling interest - 20.2 - 20.2 - 20.2
Profit for the year - - - - 46.7 46.7
At 31 December 2015 {.9) 6.1 2.5 6.7 682.3 £89.0
N . Other reserves:
L . Business
comb. under Total other Totai other ©  Retained
Hedging common control . ing: Total
Group - attributable to owners of the parent Company ! £m £m £m £m £m - £m
At 1 January 2014 - (14.1) 12.9 (1.2) 579.1 577.9
Cash flow hedges . (2.4) - - 2.4) - {2.4)
Taxation on cash flow hedges 05 - - 0.5 - 0.5
benefit obligati ial loss . . . - . - (13.0) (13.0)
Taxation on retirement benefit obligation actuarial loss . . - - - - 27 27
Currency translation differences ’ - - 4.7 @.n - 4.7)
Profit for the year - - - - 61.6 616
At 31 December 2014 . ) (1.9 {(14.1) 8.2 {7.8) 630.4 622.6
Included within other are i gains of £1.5m (2014: £7.2m) and gains on the fair value of cash flow hedges of £1.0m (2014; £1.0m).
Retained Other reserves:
L. earnings Hedging Other Total
Company . £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2015 R : 505.7 (1.9) 10.7 514.5
Profit for the year 51.2 - - 51.2 -
Retirement benefit obligation actuarial gain . . 5.5 - - .55
Taxation on retirement benefit obligation actuarial gain {1.2) - - (1.2)
At 31 December 2015 : s81.2 - (1.9) 107 570.0
Retained Other reserves:
earnings Hedging Other Total
Company £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2014 480.3 - 10.7 491.0
Profit for the year . 35.1 - - 35.1
Cash flow hedges - (2.4) - (2.4)
Taxation on cash flow hedges .. . - 0.5 - 0.5
Retirement benefit obfigation actuarial loss (12.0) - - (12.0)
Taxation on retirement benefit obligation actuariat loss | 23 - - 23
At 31 December 2014 N 505.7 (1.9) 10.7 514.5
Other reserves include £10.9m (2014: £10.9m) in respect of the differences between the nominal value and fair value of shares issued for tﬁe( quisition of idiary ies. Also included within
other reserves are cumulative exchange fosses of £0.2m (2014: £0.2m). . :
22. Cash generated from operations
Reconciliation of profit before ion to cash d from
Group Company
2018 2014 . 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Profit before taxation . A . 742 - 75.4 829 399
Adjustments for: . . . . ‘
- Finance income . (25.6) (07) | {25.9) (21.0)
- Finance costs . . 133 10.4 5.2 3.1
Depreciation charges N - 422 34.9 245 20.4
Amortisation and impairment of intangibles . 184 1.7 10.4 . 88
Gain on disposal of businesses to subsidiary undertaking ~ - - (31.2) -
Retirement benefit contributions paid (2.6) (2.8) (1.8) {2.1)
(Profit) / toss on sale of property, plant and equipment (2.2) 0.9 (2.6) . 20
Property, plant and equipment impairment toss . ) . 0.2 23 0.2 . 23
Decrease / (increase}) in inventories . 57 (6.8) 05 (1.2}
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables . . (1.4) (4.4) (2.4) . 5.4
Increase in trade and other payables ° 23.3 230 - 211 134
- B
Cash generated from operations : - 145.5 123.9 4 60.9 65.0
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23. Business combinations

On 23 February 2015, the Group formed a new company, the Fresh Direct Group Limited. This is wholly owned by Cucina Fresh Finance Limited, which is also a new company formed on 23 February
2015. The Group transferred its existing M&J Seafood business and Pauteys fruit and vegetable business and the entire share capital of its existing Wild Harvest company to Fresh Direct Group Limited.
The owners of Fresh Holdings Limited transferred the entire share capital of Fresh Holdings Limited, including its wholly owned trading subsidiary undertaking Fresh Direct (UK) Limited, to Fresh Direct
Group Limited. As a consequence of this transaction, the Group owns 69.82% and the parent undertaking Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited owns 10.65% of the issued share capital of Cucina Fresh
Finance Limited. The former investors in Fresh Holdings Limited hotd 18.93% of the share capital in Cucina Fresh Finance Limited and management hold the remaining 0.60%. The Group has 68% of
the voting rights of Cucina Fresh Finance Limited with the former investors of Fresh Holdmgs Limited owning the remammg 32% voling rights. The transaction resulted in total consideration to the former
owners of Fresh Holdings Limited of £58.2m, ising cash and deferred of £50m and i of busis assets and liabilities of £8.2m, . ~—

Fresh Holdings Limited trades as Fresh Direct. Fresh Difect is a food supplier sourcing a range of fresh products and delivers nationally to a diverse range of customers. it was acquired to provide the
Group with a broader fresh food,offer with the capability to deliver fresh products six or seven days per week, from dedicated tocal fresh depots. Fresh Oirect will allow the Group to untock and develop
new opportunities and grow its businesses with customers in the fresh arena.

On 2 November 2015, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Davige) SAS for a total consideration of £90.6n. Davigel is a major supplier of chilled and frozen food for the European
foodservice industry. The acqmslhon strengthens the Group’s posmon as a major ptayer in France as well as opemng up new markets in Belgium, Luxembourg and Spain. The Group will also benefit
from Davigel's position as i of Nestle and pick ice creams in France.

The amounts recognised inrespect of the identi assets acquired and liabiliti are as set out in the table below.
Provisional fair values
Davigel SAS Fresh Direct Total

£m £m £m
tdentifiable intangible assets . 8.6 425 51.1
Property, plant and equipment N 98.3 . 6.0 : 104.3
Inventory . . 58.1 3.8 61.9
Trade and other receivables . . 662 . 29.8 : 96.0
Cash at bank 49 6.1 11.0
Financial liabilities - borrowings {7.9) (14.4) (22.3)
Trade and other payables . {75.3) (29.8) (105.1)
Loan payable to former parent company (39.4) - (39.4)
Current income tax liabilities - : 06) (0.6)
Deferred tax liabilities {8.8) (8.5) (17.3)
Retirement benefit obligations (12.5) - (12.5)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges ! . (1.6) (2.8) (4.4)
Total identifiable assets 90.6 321 1227
Non-controlling interest - . (10.2) (10.2)
Goodwill . - 36.3 36.3
Total consideration . . 80.6 58.2 148.8

Davigel SAS Fresh Direct Total

£m £€m £m
Satisfied by: .
Cash 17.9 20.0 37.9
Contribution of busi assets and liabiliti - 8.2 8.2
Deferred consideration 71 30.0 371
Davigel preference shares 656 - . 65.6
Total consideration transferred 906 58.2 148.8
Fresh Direct:

The deferred consideration requires the Group to pay £20.0m to the former owners of Fresh Direct on the earlier of the first anniversary of completion, 23 February 2016, and £10.0m on the second
anniversary, 23 February 2017, or the occurrence of the sale of Brake Bros Limited or a Group debt default.

The ibution of the busil assets and liabilities of £8.2m the provisi; fair value of the assets and liabilities contributed by the Group. As a result of this contribution an adjustment
for the Group of £19.2m has been recognised in equity reserves.

In‘the event of a Bain Capital sale of its shares in the Group, the Fresh Direct sale and purchase agreement gives the parent undertaking Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited a call option to acquire, and the
owners of the remaining minority stake in the Fresh Direct Group a put option to sell their remaining shares in the Fresh Direct Group. The call option enables Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited to acquire
all of the minority stake, whilst the put option is proportional to the sell down of shares by Bain Capital.

The put option has the effect of distributing 32% of the value of the business in a sale to the non-controlling interest, and on this basis the non-controlling interest has therefore been calcutated at 32%.

Davigel:

The deferred consideration for Davigel requires the Group to pay £7.1m to the former owners should Davigel be in transitioning the i  across from the former owner's IT systems onto a
system by 31 D«

The fair value of the d i i of £7.1m was esti by idering the pi ility of the likely and the value payable based on each of these outcomes. After

reviewing the terms of the agreement and considering the timing of key strategic plans for the Group, believe that separation of the system will occur by the target date and therefore this

consideration is likely to fall due.

The £65.6m Davigel preference shares were issued to Nestle on 2 November 2015 to fund the isiti The prefi shares are h le for IPO shares (see note 15 to the financial
statements for further details). .

‘Davigel SAS Fresh Direct Total
£m i £€m
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: .
Cash consideration X 17.9 20.0 - 379
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired . . (4.9) (6.1) {11.0)
13.0 13.9 26.9
Goodwill, being the excess of the conslderation over the net tangible and ii gible assets ired, rep benefits which do not qualify for ition as i ssets, il ing the ability of a

business to generate higher returns than individual assets, skilled workforces, and acquisition of synergles that are specific to the Group. The goodwil recognised of £36. Sm is non-tax deductbte.

The fair value of the financial assets includes trade and other recéivables with a fair value of £66.2m and £29.8m and a gross contractuat value of £71.2m and £30.5m for Davigel and Fresh Direct
respectively. The best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not to be collected are £5.0m and £0.7m for Davigel and Fresh Direct respectively.

The fair values of all of the assets and liabiliti ired are provisi The Directors are contining to assess the impact of accounting for the acquisitions up to the date of these financial statements.
Final fair vatues will be incorporated in the 2016 ﬁnanclal statements.

Financial information
tn 2015, the acquired businesses, Davigel and Fresh Direct, contributed £87.3m and £185.2m to revenue, increased EBITDA by £3.5m and £11.4m and increased / (decreased) profit before finance
costs and tax by £(1.1)m and £4.6m respectively, for the part year under the Group’s ownership and before taking account of acquisition financing costs. -

Had the businesses been quired at the beginning of the year, the Group’s revenues, would have been £3,702.7m with Davigel contributing £466.2m and Fresh Direct contributing £213.8m. EBITDA for
the year would have been £184.2m with Davige! comnbuung £16.tm and Fresh Duect conlnbunng £|1 9m. The profit for the year before finance costs and tax would have been £8.4m, with Davigel
contributing £4.1m and Fresh Direct contributing £4.3m and which include the of acquired ible assets.

" '
Acquisition-retated tr ion costs (i in i items in ini i P ) amount to £14.0m.
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23. i inati i )

A reconciliation of profit for the year before finance costs and tax to EBITDA for the acquisitions is set out below.

Davigel SAS Fresh Direct Total
£m . £m : £m
Profit for the year before finance costs and tax 4.1 43 8.4
Depre&alion and amortisation : . 12.0 54 17.4
R ing of the UK distribution network - 1.7 1.7
Other UK restructuring costs and other costs - 0.5 0.5
Total exceptional items . - 22 . 2.2
EBITDA : ' 16.1 119 280
24. Employees and :
Group . Company
Average monthly number of people employed by the Group and Company during the year: 2015 2014 2015 2014
Number Number Number Number
Distribution, manufacturing and sellmg - . 11,236 9,380 5,999 5,937
Administration B . 1,182 979 497 524
'
12,418 10,359 6,496 6,461
Group Company
2015 2014 2018 2014
£m £m § £m £m
The costs incurred in respect of these employees were:
Wages and salaries . 336.9 292.4 1926 182.5
Sacial security costs 57.8 52.3 17.6 17.5
Defined benefit pension costs 12 1.3 - -
Defined contribution pension costs (note 17) . 8.5 8.3 6.7 6.7
404.4 354.3 216.8 206.7
Key management compensation N
. 2018 2014
£m £m
Salaries and short-term benefits ’ i 79 73
Post-employment benefits . 0.4 0.3
. ) 8.3 7.6
The key management figures given above include direct The Group i key 7 to be those persons who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controliing
the activities of the Group. .
As part of management incentive plans certain emloyees in the UK and BCED hold 155,894,040 (2014: 154,291,563) ordinary shares across various ies with different entil and loan notes
with a nominal value of £3.5m (2014: £3.4m) in the parent undertaking Cucina Investments (UK) 3 Limited. Certain employees also hald loan notes with a nominal vatue of £3.1m (2014: £3.1m) in Me
parent undertaking, Cucina Investments (UK) 2 Limited. The incentive ptan fol these employees is based on the performance of the Group. These i do not i a ]

interest in the Group.

In Sweden certain employees hold 16,742,023 A and B warrants in the subsidiary undertaking Cidron Food Holdings S.a r.i. The incentive plan in Sweden is based on the perfurmance of the subsidiary
undertaking Menigo Foodservice AB.

All of the above i ive ptans are ‘to y: ise when Bain sells its investment in the Group.

Centain Fresh Direct employees hold 561,089 C shares and 470,807 D shares in the subsidiary unde:'wking Cucina Fresh Finance Limited. The il ive plan for these employ is based on the
performance of the Fresh Direct Group. ‘

The loan notes held by in Cucina (UK) 3 Limited and Cucina Investments (UK) 2 Limited accrue interest at 7%,

Directors of Group undertakings hold 100,448,172 (2014: 101,107,254) ordinary shares across various ies with different enti and loan notes with a nominal value of £1.0m (2014: £1.1m)

in the parent undertaking, Cucina Investments (UK} 3 Limited and loan notes with a nominal value of £0.6m (2014: £0.9m) in the parent undertaking, Cucina Investments {UX) 2 Limited.

Directors’ emoluments

2015 2014
£°000 £'000
Aggregate emoluments . 3,603 3,596
Company pension ibutions to money p 202 187
Retirement benefits are accruing to § (2014: 7) directors under money purchase pension arrangements only.
Emoluments paid to the highest paid director are as follows: . .
Aggregate emotuments and benefits 1,146 1,226
Company pension contributions to money purchase schemes : 59 59
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26. Commitments

{a) Capital commitments

Group . Company
2016 2014 . 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Contracted for but not provided 27.4 29.4 22.6 294
Capital commitments in the Group amounting to £0.3m (2014: £4.6m) are in respect of the of the UK dis ion network and land and buildings, £19.7m (2014: £22.6m) is in respect of
motor vehictes and £7.4m (31 December 2014: £2.2m) is in respect of plant and machinery, I T hardware and software.
Capital commitments in the Company amounting to £0.3m (2014: £4.6m) are in respect of the ent of the UK distribution network and tand and buildings, £14.9m (2014: £22.6m) is in respect of
motor vehicles and £7.4m (31 December 2014: £2.2m) is in respect of plant and machinery, IT hardware and software.
{b) Operating lease commitments
The total of future mini lease p: in respect of : ing leases are as follows:
T 2015 2014
Land and Land and
. buildings Other . buildings Other
Group £m £€m - £m £m
Within one year ’ . 28.7 73 229 .60
Between two and five years N 98.9 10.7 83.8 6.4
After five years . 169.9 14 176.1 - 0.0
297.5 19.4 282.8 12.4
2018 2014
. Land and Land and
- buildings Other . buildings ) Other
Lompany £m £m £m £m
Within one year .13 21 131 1.9
Between two and five years : - 49.7 4.7 51.7 1.1
After five years 1411 . 14 153.2 -
203.9 8.2 218.0 3.0
The Company and the Group leases various properties and plant and i under ting lease agr The leases have various terms and renewal rights. The Company
and the Group has also sub-let certain properties under el and the tota! of future mini lease to be received by the Group amounts to £0.7m

{2014: £nil) and by the Company amounts to £0.7m (2014: £nil).

(c) Other commitments
Senior debt of a parent undertaking Cucina Acquisition {(UK) Limited is secured by way of a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Company and certain other UK assets of the Group.

26. Related party transactions

During the year the Company cpnlinued.lo provide and receive funding to and from other Group Companies, and has also into certain other jons with other Con ies in the Cucina (BC) Luxco
.4 1.1, group. Details of these transactions are as follows:

201§ 2014
£m £m
Loans owed by parent undertakings ) 419.8 . 360.3
Loans owed by subsidiary undertakings . 66.6 -
Loans owed to parent undertakings (89.2) (8.3)
Amounts owed by parent undertakings . 201.2 176.9
Trade and other bles owed to parent ing (95.4) (77.3)
Trade and other payables owed to Group undertakings . {168.4) ) (142.1)
Trade and other owed by iary ing: 101.4 98.4
Interest payable to parent undertakings (2.9) N (0.7)
Interest payable to subsidiary undennkmgs v (0.%) -
Interest i from idiary 0.8 -
Interest receivable from parenl undertakings ' 27.6 204
Sales to subsidiary undertakings . 736 66.5
Purchases from subsidiary undertakings (87.1) . (18.6)

None of the balances owed to or by parent d idiary ings or i are secured.

As disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements the ultimate controlling parties of the Company are Bain Capital Fund IX E LP and Bain Capital Fund VIl € LP. In addition to the above transactions
the Group and Company also pi and iting services and financlal and other advisory services from Bain Capital. In 2015 these advisory fees in the Company amounted to
£1.6m (2014: £1.5m) included wnhm administrative expenses. At the year end there were no amounts owed to Bain Capital by the Group and Company |ncluded within trade and other payables for
advisory fees (2014: £0.4m).

During the year the Company incurred costs amounting to £0.9m (2014: £0.8m) for pay p ing services from Wi y. an i of Bain Capital. At the year end amounts owed
to WorldPay were £qil (2014: £nil).

Key ion is discidsed in note 24, reti benefit obligations are di in note 17.

27. Uttimate parent company and controlling party
The immediate parent undertaking and controlling party is Brake Bros Acquisition Limited, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The ultimate parent undertaking Is Cucina (BC) Luxco S.ar.l., a pnvale limited in Luxer . The ultimate controlling parties of the Company are Baln Capital Fund IXE LP and
Bain Capital Fund VI E LP, both are limited g in the Cayman tstands, which are lndlreclly controlled by Bain Capita! Investors LLC, a Defaware limited liability company.

The parent undertaking of the smallest group-to these financial is Cucina isition (UK) Limited and the parent undertaking of the largest UK group to consolidate these financial
statements is Cucina Lux Investments Limited. Copies of Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited and Cucina Lux i Limited i financia! can be obtained from the Company
Secretary at Enterprise House, Eureka Business Park, Ashford, Kent, TN25 4AG. 4

28. Post balance sheet events

©On 22 February 2016 Bain Capital announced that it had reached a definitive agreement for the sale of the Group to North America’s leading foodservice distributor Sysco Corporation. It is expected
that transaction will complete by July 2016.

. .
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